
 
Tony Kershaw 

Director of Law and Assurance 

 
If calling please ask for: 
 

Adam Chisnall on 033 022 28314 
Email: adam.chisnall@westsussex.gov.uk 
 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 
 

 
County Hall  
Chichester 

West Sussex 
PO19 1RQ 

Switchboard  
Tel no (01243) 777100 

 

 

 

29 October 2021 

Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee 
 

A meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30 am on Monday, 8 November 
2021 at County Hall, Chichester, PO19 1RQ. 
 

Note: In response to the continuing public health measures, there will be limited 
public access to the meeting. Admission is by ticket only, bookable in advance via: 

democratic.services@westsussex.gov.uk 
 
 

Tony Kershaw 
Director of Law and Assurance 

 
 

 Agenda 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 
Members and officers must declare any pecuniary or personal interest in any 
business on the agenda. They should also make declarations at any stage such 

an interest becomes apparent during the meeting. Consideration should be 
given to leaving the meeting if the nature of the interest warrants it.  If in doubt 

please contact Democratic Services before the meeting. 
 

2. Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee  (Pages 5 - 12) 

 
The Committee is asked to agree the minutes of the meeting held on 22 

September 2021 (cream paper). 
 

3. Urgent Matters   

 
Items not on the agenda which the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion 

should be considered as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances. 
 

4. Final Version of the Statement of Accounts 2020/21   

 
The Committee agreed the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 at its last meeting 

and agreed that the Chairman sign them, but also then sign any final version if 
there were only minor amendments. Small changes were eventually made to 

note 43, as set out below. The Committee is asked to note that the Chairman 
has signed the final version of the statement of accounts that includes the 
changes shown in bold italic type below: 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:democratic.services@westsussex.gov.uk


Extract from Note 43 - Assumptions made about the future and other 

sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The external valuer instructed by the Council adopts various estimation 

techniques to arrive at their valuations. The Authority changed its valuer in 
2020/21, and a different technique applied by the new valuer in relation to 

school assets has had a significant impact on the Council’s balance sheet. 
Bruton Knowles have applied a ‘Modern Equivalent Asset’ (MEA) approach, 
whereby for Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) valuations (such as for 

schools), the valuation is based on the cost to construct an asset with 
equivalent service potential rather than a like-for-like replacement of the 

existing structure which was the approach adopted in the prior year by 
the Council’s previous external valuer. Additionally, Bruton Knowles have 
distinguished between ‘developed’ and ‘undeveloped’ land in their school 

valuations, whereas the previous valuer adopted a ‘blended’ approach in the 
prior year.’ 

 
5. External Audit   

 

The Committee is asked to consider the updated and final 2020/21 Audit Results 
Report and the draft 2020/21 Auditor’s Annual Report from the External Auditor 

Ernst & Young (EY). 
 
(a) West Sussex County Council 2020/21 Final Audit Results Report  

(Pages 13 - 64) 
 

(b) Draft 2020/21 Auditor's Annual Report  (Pages 65 - 108) 
 

6. Internal Audit - Overdue Medium & Low Priority Management Actions 
(October 2021)  (Pages 109 - 118) 
 

Report by the Director of Finance and Support Services, and the Head of 
Southern Internal Audit Partnership. 

The Committee is asked to note the status of overdue medium and low priority 

management actions (October 2021). 
 

7. Quarterly Review of Corporate Risk Management  (Pages 119 - 130) 

 
Report by the Director of Finance and Support Services. 

The Committee is asked to review the information detailed in the report and 

current Corporate Risk Register, and provide comment as necessary. 
 

8. Arrangements for appointment of an External Auditor  (Pages 131 - 136) 
 
Report by Director of Finance and Support Services. 

The Committee is asked to recommend to County Council the acceptance of the 

invitation from the Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) to continue 
to be an opt-in authority for the purposes of the appointment of an external 

auditor for both West Sussex County Council and West Sussex Pension Fund. 
 

Page 2



9. Treasury Management Compliance Report - Second Quarter 2021/22  

(Pages 137 - 144) 
 
Report by the Director of Finance and Support Services. 

The Committee is asked to review and comment on the Treasury Management 

Compliance Report. 
 

10. Date of Next Meeting   
 
The next meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30am on 17 January 2022 

at County Hall, Chichester. 
 

 
 

 
To all members of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee 
 

22 September 2021 – At a meeting of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts 
Committee held at 10.30 am at County Hall, Chichester, PO19 1RQ. 
 

Present: Cllr N Dennis (Chairman) 

 
Cllr Boram, Cllr Greenway, Cllr Montyn, Cllr Wall and Mr Parfitt 
 

 
Part I 

 
14.    Declarations of Interest  

 

14.1 None declared. 
 

15.    Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee  
 
15.1 The Committee noted the minutes regarding the Annual Governance 

Statement item and commented that the Committee had asked that the 
statement be amended to reflect ongoing improvements to governance 

processes. 

15.2 Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held 
on 19 July 2021 be approved as a correct record and that they be signed 

by the Chairman. 
 

16.    Quarterly Review of Corporate Risk Management  

 
16.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and 

Support Services (copy appended to the signed minutes). 

16.2 Mr Pake, Corporate Risk and Business Planning Manager, introduced 
the report and confirmed that a new risk had been added concerning 
placements for children in care under 16. 

16.3 The Committee made comments including those that follow. 

• Queried if Covid-19 risks should reflect supply chain and inflation 
concerns.  – Mr Pake confirmed that supply chain risks were 
monitored by directorate, and that inflation was also managed by 

service leads.  Any particular concerns could be raised with the 
service. 

• Sought clarity on the risks for Gatwick in relation to Covid-19.  – Ms 
Eberhart, Director of Finance and Support Services, confirmed that 
the Covid-19 impact on business at Gatwick continued to be 

monitored, including the impact for residents in the area.  The 
economy team published monthly reports on the health of 

businesses in the area and also tracked the number of claimants for 
universal credit.  Projections for tax and business rates had not 
indicated any major issues for the year. 

• Welcomed the monitoring of Corporate Risk 58 concerning the care 
market and the Risk Register commentary covering the issues. 

• Requested an update for Corporate Risk 72 concerning placements 
for children in care under 16.  – Ms Eberhart confirmed that the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Department for Education were aware of the actions and gave 

reassurance to the Committee that there were strong 
communications for the issue. 

• Noted the high risk rating for Corporate Risk 39a concerning cyber 

security and queried if attendance from a relevant officer at a future 
meeting would be useful.  – Ms Eberhart confirmed that the Head of 

IT would be happy to attend a future meeting to explain actions and 
mitigations. 

16.4 Resolved – That the Committee notes the information detailed in 
the report and the current risk management strategy. 

 
17.    Internal Audit Progress Report (August 2021)  

 
17.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and 

Support Services, and the Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership 
(copy appended to the signed minutes). 

17.2 Mr Pitman, Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership, introduced 
the report which provided an overview of internal audit activity and 

outlined any revisions to due dates. 

17.3 The Committee made comments including those that follow. 

• Sought clarity on the report terminology and if ‘reasonable’ was the 
same as ‘adequate’.  – Mr Pitman confirmed that CIPFA had 

reclassified terminology to ensure consistency across the public 
sector; and that the terms held the same audit status. 

• Noted the revised dates for medium actions and that several were in 
the past and requested an update.  – Mr Pitman confirmed that for 
some of the items reviews were currently taking place.  Updates 

would be provided at the following Committee meeting. 
• Noted that cyber security was considered ‘reasonable’ and queried 

how this tallied with the high risk rating on the Corporate Risk 
register.  – Mr Pitman explained that internal audit considered how 
the authority responded to the risk, and it was felt they were doing 

all they could.  The environment was ever-changing which was 
reflected by the risk rating. 

• Queried why the Home to School Transport was rated low priority 
and overdue.  – Mr Pitman reported that the low priority action 
referred to an internal issue between Children’s Services and the 

Transport.  The action was a governance issue rather than high 
level issue. 

• Asked if it was possible to see actions for medium and low actions.  
– Mr Pitman resolved to circulate this to Committee members after 
the meeting. 

17.4 Resolved – That the Committee notes the Internal Audit Progress 
Report (August 2021). 
 

18.    Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 (Q2 & Q3)  
 

18.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and 
Support Services, and the Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership 
(copy appended to the signed minutes). 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



18.2 Mr Pitman, Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership, introduced 

the audit plan for quarter two and three for the year.  Green flags had 
been added to the plan to denote the reviews that had been deferred from 
the previous year’s plan at the request of the council so that important 

work to respond to Covid-19 could be prioritised.  A review of HR policies 
was being added to the plan to provide assurance for compliance of key 

policy areas. 

18.3 The Committee made comments including those that follow. 

• Noted the governance consideration of the IT Transition Programme 
and queried if the resources of the programme would be considered 

after the transition was completed.  – Mr Pitman confirmed that this 
was a significant change for the authority and that monitoring the 
transition would be a key focus.  Assurance mapping processes 

were in place to audit this. 
• Queried service resilience in regard to Covid-19 and how home 

working was considered as part of the review.  – Mr Pitman 
explained the importance of ensuring that the resilience plans were 
keeping pace with the authority’s direction of travel.  A formal 

decision on future working had not yet been made. 
• Noted the review for Ash Dieback and commented that the public 

were likely to be interested in how this was being managed. 

18.4 Resolved – That the Committee approves the Internal Audit Plan 
2021-22 (Q2 & Q3). 
 

19.    Annual Governance Statement  
 

19.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Law and 
Assurance (copy appended to the signed minutes). 

19.2 Mr Gauntlett, Senior Advisor – Democratic Services, introduced the 

Statement and confirmed that it reflected the journey of improvement for 
the County Council.  Progress had been made within Children’s Services 
and the Fire Service but there were still improvements required.   

19.3 An additional paragraph was circulated to the committee concerning 

the Teachers’ Pension Regulations (copy appended to the signed minutes).  
The paragraph gave details of a breach that had been notified to the 

Pensions Regulator, and a plan to rectify the issue. 

19.4 Mrs Shaw, Chief Executive, joined the meeting virtually and 
reinforced that the statement captured the work that had been done and 

the improvements that had been put in place.  Mrs Shaw acknowledged 
that there was still work to do but felt that the Statement showed more 
transparency on activity. 

19.5 The Committee made comments including those that follow. 

• Commented that the Statement showed more assurance than in 
previous years.  – Mr Gauntlett confirmed that assurance was in 
place from the Director of Law and Assurance.  Mrs Shaw confirmed 

that the Executive Leadership Team confirmed full assurance with 
no change in definitions. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



• Queried the resources issues within the Children’s Commissioner 

section.  – Mrs Shaw explained that that the framework had drawn 
on all evidence such as John Coughlan’s commissioner report and 
the fire inspection report.  Officers had confidence that the 

framework covered all areas, and confirmed that inspectors would 
be looking in this area too. 

• Noted the pending Fire and Rescue inspection and asked if further 
issues were likely to be discovered.  – Mrs Shaw welcomed the 
pending inspection to check the work that had been undertaken.  

Officers were hopeful that the work had been sufficient but would 
await the results of the inspection. 

• Sought clarity on the progress of County Local Forums.  – Mr 
Gauntlett confirmed there had been a delay in progression of the 
forums due to the scheduling of the Governance Committee where 

the forums were due for discussion.  Once the Governance 
Committee had given support, the work on the forums could 

continue. 

19.6 Resolved – That the Committee recommends the draft Statement 
and Action Plan for adoption through the signatures of the Leader of the 

Council and the Chief Executive. 
 

20.    External Audit  

 
20.1 The Committee considered the Audit Results Reports for the West 

Sussex Pension Fund and the West Sussex County Council; and updated 
draft management representation letters (copies appended to the signed 
minutes). 

20.2 Mrs Thompson, EY, began by introducing the West Sussex Pension 

Fund report and reporting that the audit work was substantially complete 
and that County Council delays would delay the Pension Fund work as the 

audits would be signed off together. 

20.3 Mrs Thompson highlighted that there had been a change in 
materiality and also that there had been a change in the International 

Standards of Auditing on 5 40 concerning auditing estimates.  This change 
had impacted EY’s audit work. 

20.4 Mr Mathers, EY, spoke on the risks that had been considered as part 
of the pension fund audit.  The first risk was on the manipulation of 

investment income and valuation and concerned management override 
risks.  It was highlighted that this was difficult to do for pension funds as 

the information used for the accounts came from third parties, such as 
fund managers.  The investigation on this area resulted in no issues being 
reported from the audit. 

20.5 Mr Mathers reported on the next considered risk which concerned 
the valuation of property investments.  The risks on this area focussed on 
the estimate of property values and ensuring that the appointed valuer’s 

work is reliable.  The investigation on this area resulted in no issues being 
reported from the audit. 

20.6 Mr Mathers reported on the next considered risk which concerned 

the valuation of level three investments which was a material area of the 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



fund.  There was no observable market data for this and so the 

investments were difficult to value.  Another difficulty was that the 
investments were not underpinned by the end of year statements and so 
additional work was required to gain assurance.  The investigation on this 

area resulted in no issues being reported from the audit. 

20.7 Mr Mathers reported on the final area of audit focus which was on 
going concern which had been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.  The 

pension fund was performing strongly and had significant liquid 
investments available if required.  Consideration of liquidity estimates and 
how they had been reported had been looked into and EY were satisfied 

that work in this area was reasonable.  EY had made some changes to the 
disclosure for going concern in the management assessment in the 

financial statements. 

20.8 The Committee made comments including those that follow. 

• Sought clarity on the lower value misstatement that had been 
identified.  – Mr Mathers confirmed that the value concerned private 

equity valuations. 
• Queried the draft management representation letters and that the 

role of the Committee in the process should be clarified.  – Mrs 

Thompson proposed that wording could be added to the letters to 
confirm that the Committee had considered and reviewed the 

reports at a meeting as part of their terms of reference 
responsibilities. 

20.9 Mrs Thompson introduced the West Sussex County Council report 

and began by thanking both County Council and Pension officers for their 
help with the audits.  The year had been challenging for the audit and the 
work had been significantly helped by the support that had been received. 

20.10 Mrs Thompson reported that the straightforward areas of the audit 

were complete, but there were three areas that were still outstanding 
which could impact the completion deadline of 30 September.  The first 

area concerned an objection that had been received from a member of the 
public.  EY were working to consider if the objection would impact their 
audit opinion concerning value for money.  An internal consultation was 

taking place to consider EY’s judgement on the objection.  The second 
area concerned valuation of property, plant and equipment.  The third 

area concerned IAS19 pension liabilities which was a national issue for 
financial statements.  With regard to value for money consideration, apart 

from the objection consideration, there were no matters to report by 
exception.  The Auditor’s Annual Report would include summaries on the 
three matters outlined. 

20.11 Mrs Thompson explained that EY would not be able to issue the 

audit certificate which formally closes the audit due to the outstanding 
work as mentioned.  The delay of issuing the audit certificate was also 

linked to a delay in HM Treasury releasing the tool used for submitting the  
Whole of Government Accounts.  The Audit Result Reports would be 
reissued to the Committee when they were finalised. 

20.12 Mr Mathers reiterated Mrs Thompsons comments on the hard work 

undertaken by County Council officers to assist with EY’s audit.  Mr 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



Mathers spoke through the risks that had been considered as part of the 

County Council audit.  The first risk was on the management override 
controls and how they could be misused.  The audit work on this area was 
complete and there were no issues to raise to the committee. 

20.13  Mr Mathers reported on the next significant risk which concerned 

inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.  EY had tested this 
area and were satisfied that there were no areas of concern to raise with 

the Committee. 

20.14 Mr Mathers reported on the next significant  risk which concerned 
the valuation of land and buildings.  Significant work had been done in this 

area following the County Council’s change in their appointed valuer, and 
how the different approach taken by the valuer had been reported.  EY 
had added disclosures on this to explain the County Council’s judgements, 

and work to test this area was still being undertaken by EY’s valuer. 

20.15 Mr Mathers reported on the next area of audit focus which 
concerned the County Council’s Private Finance Initiatives and the models 

that were in operation for them.  There had been no changes to models 
used, and EY had no issues to report on this area. 

20.16 Mr Mathers reported on the next area of audit focus which 

concerned pension liability valuations.  For this area the County Council 
was reliant on the work of the actuary, and so EY tested the information 
submitted to the actuary and the output from the actuary.  As the final 

audited value of Pension Fund assets was available, the Council made an 
adjustment to update the estimated value used in the draft statements. 

20.17 Mr Mathers reported on going concern and that this was a strong 

area for the County Council with regard to cashflow and treasury 
management. 

20.18 Mr Mathers reported on the final area of focus which concerned the 

accuracy and appropriateness of Covid-19 grant reporting.  The 
accounting treatment applied for an Adult Social Care grant had been 
considered and accepted as reasonable, but the County Council had been 

asked to include more disclosure details in the statements. 

20.19 The Committee made comments including those that follow. 

• Queried the introductory letter in the report and the quality of 
evidence required to perform a satisfactory audit, and if this gave 

more assurance than previous years.  – Mrs Thompson confirmed 
that audit was generally under a high level of increasing scrutiny 

and gave reassurance that EY would only give an opinion and sign 
off an audit when they were completely satisfied. 

• Questioned why EY has not be able to access actuary models as 

part of the audit.  – Mrs Thompson explained that all actuaries had 
different models which were their own intellectual property.  The 

model mechanics were not considered, but EY would be able to 
identify if there were issues with the model that impacted 
materiality.  Mr Mathers added that the work on modelling would 

complete soon, and EY felt it was likely to run positively based on 
the work done on other audits. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



• Sought clarity over the Adult Social Care grant and how intelligence 

from other audits had been considered.  – Mr Mathers explained 
that there were split opinions across authorities on how the grant 
should be reported.  Additional disclosures had been added to the 

statements to explain the West Sussex County Council approach. 

20.20 Resolved – That the Committee notes the 2020/21 Audit Results 
Reports for the West Sussex Pension Fund and the West Sussex County 

Council and requests that details be added to the management 
representation letters to cover the role of the Committee. 
 

21.    Financial Statements 2020/21  
 

21.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and 
Support Services (copy appended to the signed minutes). 

21.2 Mrs Chuter, Financial Reporting Manager, introduced the report and 

explained that an updated copy of the County Council Financial 
Statements had been circulated following changes as part of the ongoing 
audit work (copy appended to the signed minutes). 

21.3 Mrs Chuter explained the changes to the updated statements which 

included additional disclosures relating to the change in approach for 
school valuations on the balance sheet; and an additional contingent 

liability in relation to a breach of the Teachers’ Pension Regulations. 

21.4 Mrs Chuter explained that the usual deadline for financial 
statements was July, but following the Redmond Review there was 

temporary two year revision of the deadline to September.  It was 
confirmed that risk registers for the statements continued to be reviewed 
during the course of the audit. 

21.5 The Committee made comments including those that follow. 

• Thanked the officers and the auditors for their work on the 
statements and the audit, particularly under the difficult 
circumstances as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and changing 

guidance. 
• Commented on the assumptions and estimates made for the 

statements and how they were presented in the reports.  – Mrs 
Thompson felt that the County Council assumptions and judgements 
were comprehensively outlined within the statement and were of a 

high quality when compared to other council’s statements. 
• Queried the considered exposure for the changes for contingent 

liabilities and if this could be a material risk.  – Mrs Chuter explained 
that this was in the hands of the Teachers’ Pension and that the 
work had not begun yet.  Mr Mathers added that the included 

disclosure was correct based on the level of work progression. 
• Asked if the Committee would be able to approve the statements, 

given that there were elements of work outstanding.  – Mrs Chuter 
explained that the statements would be agreed in their current 
state, subject to any further changes.  The Committee could 

delegate authority to the Chairman for final approval if changes 
were minor in nature.  If changes were major an urgent meeting of 

the Committee would be convened.  The Chairman confirmed that 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



details of any changes would be communicated to the Committee.  

The Committee agreed to delegate final approval to the Chairman, 
subject to any minor changes. 

21.6 Resolved – That the Committee approves the Statement of Accounts 
for 2020/21 for West Sussex County Council and the West Sussex Pension 

Fund, for signing by the Chairman of the Committee.  The Committee also 
agrees to delegate final approval to the Chairman following completion of 

outstanding elements of the statements, subject to the changes being 
minor. 
 

22.    Date of Next Meeting  
 

22.1 The Committee noted that its next scheduled meeting would be held 
at 10.30 am on 8 November 2021 at County Hall, Chichester. 

 
The meeting ended at 12.33 pm 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



West Sussex County
Council
Audit results report
Year ended 31 March 2021

25 October 2021

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5a



2

West Sussex County Council 25 October 2021
County Hall
West Street
Chichester
PO19 1RQ

Dear Committee Members

2020/21 Audit results report

We are pleased to attach our audit results report, summarising the final findings and conclusions from our audit. This therefore updates the
previous version of the report presented to the Regulation Audit and Accounts Committee on 22 September 2021.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2020/21 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements.
This report contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on West Sussex County Council’s accounting policies and
judgements and material internal control findings. Each year sees further enhancements to the level of audit challenge and the quality of
evidence required to achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the management team for supporting this
process. We have also included an update on our work on value for money arrangements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee, other members of the Council and
senior management. It is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Yours faithfully

Helen Thompson, Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 5a



3

Contents
Executive
Summary01 Audit Report 04Areas of

Audit Focus02 03 Audit
Differences

05 Appendices08Other
Reporting
Issues

06 07 Independence 09
Value for
Money

Assessment of
Control
Environment

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee and management of West Sussex County Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee, and management of West Sussex County Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee and management of West Sussex
County Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

V
F
M

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5a



4

Executive Summary01

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 5a



5

Executive Summary
Scope update

In our audit planning report presented to the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee meeting on 19 July 2021 , we provided you with an overview of our audit
scope and approach for the audit of the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following updates:
Changes in materiality
We updated our planning materiality assessment using the draft financial statements and have also reconsidered our risk assessment

Auditing accounting estimates
A revised auditing standard has been issued in respect of the audit of accounting estimates. The revised standard requires auditors to consider inherent risks associated
with the production of accounting estimates. These could relate, for example, to the complexity of the method applied, subjectivity in the choice of data or assumptions
or a high degree of estimation uncertainty. As part of this, auditors now consider risk on a spectrum (from low to high inherent risk) rather than a simplified
classification of whether there is a significant risk or not.  At the same time, we may see the number of significant risks we report in respect of accounting estimates to
increase as a result of the revised guidance in this area. We have considered the following areas as higher inherent risk estimates in our approach:
• The revaluation of land and buildings classified as Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Investment Property (IP) and Surplus Assets.
• Pension liability and asset valuation.
Additional audit procedures as a result of Covid-19
Other changes in the entity and regulatory environment as a result of Covid-19 that have not resulted in an additional risk, but result in the following impacts on our
audit strategy were as follows:
Information Produced by the Entity (IPE):
We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by the entity due to the inability of the audit team to
verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the  Fund’s systems. We undertook the following to address this risk:
• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE we audited; and
• Agreed IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.
Changes to reporting timescales
As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021 No 263, have been published and came into force on 31 March 2021.
This announced a change to publication date for final, approved financial statements from 31 July to 30 September 2021 for all relevant authorities.

Planning Materiality Performance Materiality Audit Differences

Our planning materiality represents 1.8% of gross
expenditure on provision of services, levies expenditure
and interest payable. In previous years we have been
required to calculate separate materiality to apply to
our audit work on Firefighters’ Pension Scheme Account
included in the financial statements. This requirement
no longer applies for 2020/21.

Performance materiality represents
75% of planning materiality and is the
top of our range, consistent year on
year.

We report all uncorrected misstatements relating to
the primary statements greater than 5% of planning
materiality.

Planning £25.8 million £19.3m £1.3m

Final £31.9 million £23.9m £1.6m

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 5a



6

Executive Summary

Status of the audit

As at 25 October 2021 our audit work in respect of the Council’s opinion is complete subject to:
• Final receipt of management representations.
• Final checks of the amended financial statements.
• Final consideration of subsequent events up to the date of the audit opinion.
• Documentation of final review on our audit files.

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion in the week commencing 1 November 2021.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code of Audit Practice 2020

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness on its use of resources. The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the
Council a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money through economic,
efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 5a



7

Executive Summary

Status of the audit – Value for Money
In the audit planning report presented to the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee, we reported that we had completed our value for money (VFM) risk
assessment and not identified any risk of significant weakness against the three reporting criteria we are required to consider under the NAO’s 2020 Code. We have
revisited our assessment on completion of the audit of the financial statements and remain satisfied that we have not identified a risk of significant weakness. As a
result, we have completed our planned VFM procedures.
We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Audit differences

There are no unadjusted differences as at 25 October 2021.
There were no misstatements greater than £23.9m which have been corrected by management. The IAS19 pension liability has been reduced by approximately £7.8m,
with a corresponding entry made to the pensions reserve, to adjust for differences between the Council’s share of estimated Pension Fund assets considered by the
actuary in determining the pension liability and the Council’s share of actual Pension Fund assets accounted for in the final 2020/21 Pension Fund accounts.
A small number of other amendments were also made to disclosures appearing in the financial statements as a result of our work.

Other reporting issues
We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Council. We became aware in September
2021 that the Council reported a breach of the Teachers’ Pension Regulations to the Pensions Regulator in June. This relates to a failure over a number of years dating
back to 2007 to auto-enrol some part time and casual teaching staff onto the pension scheme as required following a change to regulations in 2007. The underlying
failure to auto-enrol was fully rectified from September 2017, so this is not a continuing issue. Work recently completed by a professional actuary has now fully scoped
the number of records and individuals impacted historically. The Council will not, however, be able to quantify the cost of the breach until further work has been
completed by the Teachers’ Pensions Service and impacted individuals are contacted to confirm whether or not they intend to join the scheme. An additional disclosure
has been made in Note 40 the 2020/21 financial statements to disclose this contingent liability, and both the issue and the Council’s response to it have now been
included in the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement. We consider this issue to be relevant to our assessment of the Council’s governance arrangements as part of
VFM responsibilities. We will therefore report areas for improvement together with associated recommendations as part of the our VFM commentary in the Auditor’s
Annual Report.

We have not yet been able to perform the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. This is because  HM
Treasury are continuing to review the online 2020/21 WGA Data Collection Tool (DCT) and update the guidance that is available for preparers. Based on the last available
update the DCT and guidance was not expected to be available until December 2021 at the earliest. Therefore the 2020/21 WGA component data will not be available for
auditors to review until after that. Group Audit Instructions and the timetable for 2020/21 will necessarily follow any changes HMT make to the DCT and process.

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5a



8

Executive Summary

Objections

We have received an objection to the 2020/21 accounts from a member of the public.

As at 25 October 2021 we are satisfied that the objection raised would not cause us to modify our audit report, including the need to report by exception, for the
financial statement opinion, value for money arrangements or other audit responsibilities for 2020/21. We consider findings from the work we have undertaken in
response to the objection to be relevant to our assessment of the Council’s governance arrangements as part of VFM responsibilities. We will therefore report areas for
improvement together with associated recommendations as part of the our VFM commentary in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

We will also not be able to issue the audit certificate to formally conclude the audit until the objection is resolved.

Areas of audit focus

In our audit planning report we identified a number of key areas of focus for our audit of the financial report of West Sussex County Council. This report sets out our
observations and status in relation to these areas, including our views on areas which might be conservative and areas where there is potential risk and exposure. Our
consideration of these matters and others identified during the period is summarised within the “Areas of Audit Focus" section of this report.

Fraud Risk Findings & Conclusions

Misstatements due to fraud or error We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material management override,
instances of inappropriate judgements being applied; or any other transactions during our audit which appear
unusual or outside the Council‘s normal course of business.

Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue
expenditure

Our sample testing of additions to Property Plant and Equipment:

• Found costs had been correctly classified as capital and included at the correct value.

• Did not identify any revenue items that were incorrectly classified as capital.

Our review of judgements taken by management found them to be reasonable.

Significant  Risk Findings & Conclusions

Land and buildings classified as Property,
Plant and Equipment (PPE), Investment
Property (IP) and Surplus Assets

Our work in this area is now complete as at 25 October 2021. We are satisfied that valuations are materially
correct, but also draw two issues arising from our work to your attention.  Further details are set out in Section 2
of this report.

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 5a



9

Executive Summary

Areas of audit focus (continued)

Area of audit focus / Inherent risk Findings & Conclusions

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) (Inherent
risk)

The Council has three material PFI arrangements. PFI accounting is a complex area and therefore more susceptible to
error. Based on our work we are satisfied that:

• Inputs to the PFI accounting models were supported by evidence.

• The models continued to operate correctly.

• Output from the models was correctly reflected by the relevant accounting entries and disclosures in the financial
statements.

• PFI assets were correctly accounted for and disclosed.

Pension Liability and Asset Valuation
(Inherent risk)

As at 25 October 2021 our planned work in this area is now complete. Further details are set out in Section 2 of this
report.

One adjustment was made as a result of our work to date to reduce the IAS 19 pension liability on the Council’s
balance sheet by £7.8 million and increasing the pension fund reserve by an equivalent amount.

Going Concern (Area of audit focus) Management produced a going concern assessment to the end of the 2022/23 financial year. This was supported by
cash flow forecasts and liability benchmark analyses, which assessed the underlying need to borrow over the
assessment period and consequential impacts on the Council’s liquidity. The cash flow forecast and liability benchmark
assessments modelled two reasonable scenarios. We reviewed and challenged both the cash flow forecasts and liability
benchmark analyses and the assumptions that underpinned them. We also reviewed and further challenged the going
concern disclosure made by the Council, which appears at Notes 41 and Note 42 to the accounts, and are satisfied
that it is an adequate reflection of management’s assessment that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Accounting for Covid-19 related
government grants (Inherent risk)

Based on our work we are satisfied that the accounting treatment adopted for Covid-19 related government grants
accorded with the Council’s assessment of whether it was acting as agent or principal, the underlying conditions of the
grant and whether those conditions had been met. Based on our own assessment and intelligence gained from other
audits we challenged the Council’s assessment that it acts as agent in its role in administering the Adult Social Care
Infection Control Grant. We ultimately concluded that the Council’s assessment was not unreasonable, but asked it to
further disclose the basis for its judgement.  It has included this additional narrative at Note 42 to the amended
financial statements. Our detailed testing of funding claimed under the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme identified
no issues.

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 5a



10

Executive Summary

Control observations

We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls.

We have not identified any significant control deficiencies as part of the audit process, but we provide an update on two matters we raised as control observations in our
prior year audit in Section 07 of this report.

Independence

Please refer to Section 08 for our update on Independence.

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 5a



11

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 5a



12

Areas of Audit Focus

Fraud risks
What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or error

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

We:
• Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those

risks.
• Gained an understanding of the oversight given by those charged with governance of

management’s processes over fraud.
• Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.
We also performed mandatory procedures which we are required to undertake regardless of
specifically identified fraud risks. We:
• Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other

adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements.
• Assessed accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, including estimates with a

higher level of inherent risk relating to the revaluation of PPE, IP & surplus assets and pension
liability and asset valuation.

• Evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.
We utilised our data analytics capabilities to assist with our work.
Having re-evaluated this risk we have considered whether we need to perform other audit
procedures not referred to above. We continued to conclude that only those procedures included
under ‘Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure’ were required. See the next page for
further details.

What are our findings & conclusions?

As at 25 October 2021 our testing in this area is complete.

We have not identified any:

• material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material
management override;

• instances of inappropriate judgements being applied; or

• any other transactions during our audit which appear unusual
or outside the Council‘s normal course of business.

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 5a



13

Areas of Audit Focus

Fraud risks (continued)
What is the risk and potential impact on the financial statements?

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to manipulate
accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that
would otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
We determined that the way in which management could override controls is through the inappropriate capitalisation
of revenue expenditure to understate revenue expenditure reported in the financial statements.
We assessed that the risk of misreporting revenue outturn in the financial statements was most likely to be achieved
through:
• Revenue expenditure being inappropriately recognised as capital expenditure at the point it is posted to the

general ledger.
• Expenditure being classified as revenue expenditure financed as capital under statute (REFCUS) when it is

inappropriate to do so.
• Expenditure being inappropriately transferred by journal from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the

end of the year.
If this were to happen it would have the impact of understating revenue expenditure and overstating PPE additions
and/or REFCUS in the financial statements.

Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue
expenditure

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?
We:
• Tested PPE additions to ensure that the expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature. There were no Investment property additions in the year.
• Considered the need to test REFCUS to ensure that it is appropriate for the revenue expenditure incurred to be financed from ring fenced capital resources.

However, we note that expenditure capitalised as REFCUS was well below our performance materiality level so there was no requirement to undertake any detailed
testing.

• Sought to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals transferring expenditure from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of
the year.

In testing the capitalised expenditure we focused on the following judgements:
• We sought to gain assurance the capitalised spend clearly enhanced or extended the useful life of assets rather than simply repairing or maintaining the assets on

which it was incurred.
• We sought to gain comfort that any development or other related costs that were capitalised were reasonable to capitalise i.e. the costs incurred were directly

attributable to bringing the asset into operational use.

We sought to utilise our data analytics capabilities to assist with our work, including journal entry testing.

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 5a



14

Areas of Audit Focus

Fraud risks (continued)
What are our findings & conclusions?

Our sample testing of additions to PPE:

• Found costs had been correctly classified as capital and included at the correct value.

• Did not identify any revenue items that were incorrectly classified as capital.

Our review of judgements taken by management found that:

• Where relevant the capitalised spend clearly enhanced or extended the useful like of assets rather than simply repairing or maintaining the assets on which it
was incurred.

• Other capitalised costs were directly attributable to bringing assets into operational use.

Our data analytical procedures did not identify any journal entries that incorrectly moved expenditure into capital codes.P
age 26

A
genda Item

 5a



15

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

What is the risk and potential impact on the financial statements?

There is a high degree of estimation uncertainty in the valuation of property, especially when the amount
of PPE and IP in the case of the Council is many times our materiality for the audit. We note that not all of
the Council’s PPE is subject to revaluation with vehicles, plant, furniture & equipment, infrastructure
assets and assets under construction all valued at cost under the Local Authority Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting.

The risk therefore pertains to land and building assets, surplus assets and investment property. We
considered the impact of Covid-19 on the risk but note that the market volatility brought about by the
advent of Covid-19 in the last quarter in the prior year and throughout the 2020/21 year relates primarily
to assets carried at a market value – either fair value (investment property and surplus assets) or existing
use value (EUV) as a proxy for fair value (some of land and buildings). Asset carried at depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) are not impacted in the same way (the majority of land and buildings).

Given the nature of Covid-19 and the fact that 2020/21 was predominantly influenced by local and
national lockdowns the valuer was not be able to undertake site visits due to the restrictions in place due
to Covid-19. Therefore, the valuer has performed a remote/desktop approach to value the properties,
which increases the risk that the PPE and IP might not have been valued appropriately. The Council has
also appointed a new external valuer for 2020/21 with no prior experience of the Council’s asset base.
This further increased the level of risk.

If land and buildings or investment property are incorrectly valued this could have the impact of
understating or overstating the carrying value of assets and income and expenditure by a material
amount.

Land and buildings classified as Property,
Plant and Equipment (PPE), Investment
Property (IP) and Surplus Assets

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 5a



16

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

We:
• Considered the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of

their work.
• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuer in performing its valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and

challenged the key assumptions used by the valuer.
• Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.
• Ensured that appropriate disclosure had been made in the accounts concerning the possibility of 'material uncertainty'.
• Commissioned EY Real Estates (EYRE), our internal specialists on asset valuations, to consider the valuation approach in more detail for a sample of assets. Sampling

focussed on:
• Assets more susceptible to the market volatility brought about by C-19. We consider this relates to assets carried at either fair value or EUV
• Asset categories where errors were noted in the prior year.
• Other significant classes of assets, for example schools, where we have no prior year knowledge of the approach of the new external valuer and there had

been  significant changes in the carrying value of assets from the prior year.

What are our findings & conclusions?
As at 25 October 2021 our work in this area is now complete subject to final completion of review procedures. We are satisfied that valuations are materially correct.
There are two issues from the work undertaken to date that we wish to draw to your attention as set out below:

Revaluation of schools land and buildings assets
The carrying value of the Council’s operational land and buildings classified as PPE has decreased by approximately £500m, or by one-third, from the prior year.  The
majority of this change, approximately £375m, relates to a decrease in the carrying value of schools on the Council’s balance sheet. The Council became aware, through
its internal quality assurance checks, of significant decreases in the valuation of schools by its new external valuer, Bruton Knowles (BK), prior to preparing the draft
financial statements. There are two main causes of the decrease in value:
• BK has applied a ‘Modern Equivalent Asset’ (MEA) approach where, for DRC valuations such as for schools, the valuation is based on the cost to construct an asset

with equivalent service potential rather than a like-for-like replacement of the existing structure. This approach was not taken by the previous valuer who assumed a
like-for-like replacement of the existing structure. This has resulted in the majority of the decrease in value.

• BK has taken a different approach to the valuation of the land on which schools are located compared to the previous valuer.
The Council has undertaken work to quantify the proportion of the decrease in schools value from the prior year that it estimates is related to the use of MEA to
determine DRC. We asked management to include disclosures in the amended financial statements to explain to a user of the accounts both the primary cause of the
year-on-year change in valuation and the Council’s view that the decrease in value is caused by a change in the estimation technique used by the valuer. This additional
disclosure has now been included in the Narrative Statement, at Note 4 , Property Plant and Equipment,  and at Note 43, Assumptions made about the future and other
major sources of estimation uncertainty. We are satisfied that the material decrease is attributable to this change in estimation technique, and is not indicative of
management override or error in either the current or prior period.

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 5a



17

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What are our findings & conclusions?

Valuation of Horsham Enterprise Park
In our 2019/20 Audit Results Report EYRE concluded that the valuation of one asset, Horsham Enterprise Park, was supportable at a high level, but that an insufficiently
granular approach had been taken by the valuer. We therefore considered there to be a higher degree of estimation uncertainty in the valuation of the asset, but
concluded that the level of uncertainty did not have a material impact on the financial statements or our responsibilities. Although plans for the proposed development
have been further progressed in 2020/21, and there is more clarity on development viability, the reported value in the financial statements has remained unchanged
since 2019/20. EYRE have concluded there is now sufficient clarity for the Council’s valuer to undertake a development appraisal of the consented scheme which
properly considers the actual proposed split between residential and commercial development rather than using a high level blended value per acre. We therefore
continue to conclude that the approach taken by the valuer is insufficiently granular, meaning there remains a higher degree of estimation uncertainty in the valuation of
the asset. We also continue to conclude that this higher level of estimation uncertainty does not have a material impact on the financial statements or our
responsibilities, but it is important that the weaknesses in the valuation approach are addressed in 2021/22.

Recommendation
Ensure that a more granular approach is taken to the valuation of Horsham Enterprise Park in 2021/22 that is based on a development appraisal of the actual consented
scheme.

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 5a



18

Areas of Audit Focus

Area of audit focus
What is the risk?

The Council has three material PFI arrangements. PFI accounting is a complex area and therefore more susceptible to
error, and a detailed review of these arrangements was undertaken by our internal expert in 2016/17 and followed-
up in 2017/18 and 2018/19.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) (Inherent
risk)

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

We reviewed the accounting entries and disclosures in relation to PFI in detail in 2020/21. In doing
this we considered whether there had been significant changes to the contractual arrangements
since the previous year. We confirmed there were no such changes and therefore that no changes
needed to be made in the year to the under-pinning accounting models for any of the PFIs. Given
no changes had been made to the accounting models we were able to continue place reliance on
the prior year work of our internal expert to gain assurance they operate correctly.
For each of the three material PFI schemes at the Council we undertook testing of in-year inputs to
the accounting models and agreed relevant entries in the financial statements to year-end outputs
from each of the models. We also undertook work to gain assurance that PFI assets were correctly
accounted for and disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet.

What are our findings & conclusions?

Based on our work we are satisfied that:

• Inputs to the PFI models were supported by evidence.

• The models continued to operate correctly.

• Output from the models was correctly reflected by the relevant
accounting entries and disclosures in the financial statements.

• PFI assets were correctly accounted for and disclosed.

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 5a



19

Areas of Audit Focus

Area of audit focus
What is the risk?

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive disclosures within
its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by the
Council.

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed
on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2021 this totalled £674m in the draft financial statements.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by its actuary.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an
actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake
procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.
.

Pension Liability and Asset Valuation
(Inherent risk)

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

We:
• Liaised with the auditors of West Sussex Pension Fund,  to

obtain assurances over the information supplied to the actuary
in relation to West Sussex County Council.

• Assessed the work of the West Sussex Pension Fund actuary
(Hymans Robertson) including the assumptions they have used
by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries
commissioned by the National Audit Office (NAO) for all local
government sector auditors, and considering any relevant
reviews by the EY actuarial team.

• Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures
made within the Council’s financial statements in relation to
IAS19.

We also considered outturn information available at the time we
undertook our work after production of the Council’s draft
financial statements, for example the year-end actual valuation of
pension fund assets. We used this to inform our assessment of the
accuracy of estimated information included in the financial
statements and whether any adjustments were required.

What are our findings & conclusions?

As at 25 October 2021 our planned work in this area is now complete. We previously reported that
an issue had arisen across all local government audits that needed to be resolved prior to us being
able to fully conclude our work. This was in relation to the impact of the new auditing standard on
accounting estimates. We planned to take an audit approach to this estimate based on procedures to
evaluate management’s process. The new auditing standard requires auditors to test the method of
measurement of accounting estimates to determine whether the model is appropriately designed,
consistently applied and mathematically accurate, and that the integrity of the assumptions and the
data has been maintained in applying the model. Neither we, nor PWC as consulting actuaries
commissioned by the NAO for all local government sector audits, were able to access the detailed
models of the actuaries in order to evidence these requirements. We therefore modified our planned
approach and undertook alternate procedures to create an auditor’s estimate, to provide a different
method of gaining assurance. The results of this exercise showed the actuarial estimate to be
accurate within a reasonable range.

One adjustment was made as a result of our work to reflect the Council’s share of the difference
between the estimated value of Pension Fund assets submitted to Hymans Robertson and the final
audited value of Pension Fund assets in its 2020/21 financial statements. This adjustment had the
impact of reducing the IAS 19 pension liability on the Council’s balance sheet by £7.8 million and
increasing the pension fund reserve by an equivalent amount.

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5a



20

Areas of Audit Focus

Area of audit focus
What is the risk?

There is a presumption that the Council will continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. However, the
Council is required to carry out a going concern assessment that is proportionate to the risks it faces. In light of the
continued impact of Covid-19 there was a need for the Council to ensure it’s going concern assessment, including its
cashflow forecast, is thorough and appropriately comprehensive.

The Council was also required to ensure that its going concern disclosure within the statement of accounts adequately
reflects its going concern assessment and in particular highlights any uncertainties it has identified.

In addition, the auditing standard in relation to going concern (ISA570) has been revised with effect for the 2020/21
accounts audit.

Going Concern (Area of audit focus)

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

We:
• Challenged management’s identification of events or conditions

impacting going concern.
• Tested management’s resulting assessment of going concern by

evaluating supporting evidence (including consideration of the risk
of management bias).

• Reviewed the Council’s cashflow forecast covering the foreseeable
future to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to continue to operate
as a going concern, including an assessment of any underlying need
to borrow.

• Undertook a ‘stand back’ review to consider all of the evidence
obtained, whether corroborative or contradictory, in drawing our
conclusions on going concern.

• Challenged the disclosure made in the accounts in respect of going
concern and any material uncertainties.

What are our findings & conclusions?

Management produced a going concern assessment to the end of the 2022/23 financial year.
This was supported by cash flow forecasts and liability benchmark analyses which assessed the
underlying need to borrow over the assessment period and consequential impacts on the
Council’s liquidity. The cash flow forecast and liability benchmark analyses modelled two
reasonable scenarios. We reviewed and challenged both the cash flow forecasts and liability
benchmark analyses and the assumptions that underpinned them. We also reviewed and
further challenged the going concern disclosure made by the Council, which appears at Notes
41 and Note 42 to the accounts. Based on all of this we are satisfied that management’s
assessment is reasonable and supportable, and that disclosures in the financial statements are
an adequate reflection of management’s assessment that it remains appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 5a



21

Areas of Audit Focus

Area of audit focus
What is the risk?

The Council has received a significant level of government funding in relation to Covid-19. Whilst there is no change in
the CIPFA Code or accounting standard (IFRS 15) in respect of accounting for grant funding, the emergency nature of
some of the grants received and in some cases the lack of clarity on any associated restrictions and conditions, means
that the Council will need to apply a greater degree of assessment and judgement to determine the appropriate
accounting treatment in the 2020/21 statements.

Accounting for Covid-19 related
government grants (Inherent risk)

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

We considered the Council’s judgement on material grants received in
relation to whether it is acting as:
• Agent, where it has determined that it is acting as an intermediary;

or
• Principal, where the Council has determined that it is acting on its

own behalf.
We sought to determine whether conditions were attached to the grant
funding received and whether those conditions were met or not.
Considering the outcome of the above we considered the
appropriateness of the accounting treatment for the grants, in
particular whether the grants were correctly classified, and whether
associated disclosure were also accurate.
We also undertook detailed testing to ensure that income under the
Government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme had been claimed
and recognised in accordance with the scheme rules.

What are our findings & conclusions?

Based on our work we are satisfied that the accounting treatment adopted for Covid-19 related
government grants accorded with the Council’s assessment of whether it was acting as agent
or principal, the underlying conditions of the grant and whether those conditions had been
met.

Based on our own assessment and intelligence gained from other audits we further challenged
the Council’s assessment that it acts as agent in its role in administering the Adult Social Care
Infection Control Grant. We ultimately concluded that the Council’s assessment was not
unreasonable, but asked management to further disclose the basis for their judgement.
Management has included this additional narrative at Note 42 to the amended financial
statements.

Our detailed testing of funding claimed under the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme identified
no issues.

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5a



22

Audit Report03

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 5a



23

DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

Audit Report

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of
Finance and Support Services’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of 18 months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Director of Finance and Support
Services with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.  However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of
Accounts 2020/21, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.  The Director of Finance and Support Services is responsible for the
other information contained within the Statement of Accounts 2020/21.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements and the firefighters’ pension fund
financial statements of West Sussex County Council for the year ended 31
March 2021 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial
statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet,
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Cash Flow Statement and
the related notes 1 to 44 and Expenditure and Funding Analysis on page 23,
and include the firefighters’ pension fund financial statements comprising the
Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement at note 45.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of West Sussex County

Council as at 31 March 2021 and of its expenditure and income for the
year then ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of
the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor General’s AGN01, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 5a



24

DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

Audit Report

Responsibility of the Director of Finance and Support Services
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 20,
the Director of Finance and Support Services is responsible for the preparation of
the Statement of Accounts, which includes the Authority financial statements and
the firefighters pension fund financial statements, in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance and Support
Services is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority either intends to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:
• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or

inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our
knowledge of the Authority;

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014;

• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

• we are not satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for
the year ended 31 March 2021.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 5a



25

DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

Audit Report

We understood how West Sussex County Council is complying with those
frameworks by understanding the incentive, opportunities and motives for non-
compliance, including inquiring of management, the head of internal audit and
those charged with governance and obtaining and reading documentation
relating to the procedures in place to identify, evaluate and comply with laws and
regulations, and whether they are aware of instances of non-compliance. We
corroborated this through our reading of the Authority’s committee minutes.
Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures had a focus on
compliance with the accounting framework through obtaining sufficient audit
evidence in line with the level of risk identified and with relevant legislation.
• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to

material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding the
potential incentives and pressures for management to manipulate the financial
statements, and performed procedures to understand the areas in which this
would most likely arise. Based on our risk assessment procedures, we
identified the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure and
management override of controls to be our fraud risks.

• To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue
expenditure we tested the Authority’s capitalised expenditure to ensure the
capitalisation criteria were properly met and the expenditure was genuine.

• To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements; assessed
accounting estimates for evidence of management bias; and evaluated the
business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of
our auditor’s report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with
governance of the entity and management.
We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant are:
• the Local Government Act 1972;
• the Local Government Act 2003;
• the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)

Regulations 2003 as amended in 2018 and 2020;
• the National Health Service Act 2006;
• the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; and
• the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
In addition, the Authority has to comply with laws and regulations in the areas
of anti-bribery and corruption, data protection, employment Legislation, tax
Legislation, general power of competence, procurement and health & safety.

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 5a



26

DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

Audit Report

Delay in certification of completion of the audit
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until:
• We have completed the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in

respect of the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack.
We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial
statements or on our work on value for money arrangements.

• We have completed the work necessary to address an objection received from
a local elector. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect
on the financial statements or on our work on value for money arrangements.

Until we have completed these procedures we are unable to certify that we have
completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by
the National Audit Office.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the members of West Sussex County Council, as a
body,  in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice,
having regard to the guidance on the specified reporting criteria issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021, as to whether West Sussex
County Council had proper arrangements for financial sustainability,
governance and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The
Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary
for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves
whether West Sussex County Council put in place proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the
year ended 31 March 2021.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on
our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to
form a view on whether, in all significant respects, West Sussex County
Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects
of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Our opinion on the financial statements

Draft audit report

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 5a



27

Audit Differences04

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 5a



28

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to
interpretation.

There are no unadjusted differences.

There were no misstatements greater than £23.9m which have been corrected by management. The IAS19 pension liability has been reduced by approximately £7.8m,
with a corresponding entry made to the pensions reserve, to adjust for differences between the Council’s share of estimated Pension Fund assets considered by the
actuary in determining the pension liability and the Council’s share of actual Pension Fund assets accounted for in the final 2020/21 Pension Fund accounts.

Some amendments were also made to disclosures appearing in the financial statements as a result of our work.

Summary of adjusted and uncorrected differences

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 5a



29

Value for Money05 01

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 5a



30

Value for money

The Council's responsibilities for value for money (VFM)

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding and
securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and how this has
operated during the period in an annual governance statement. In preparing its annual governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its own individual
circumstances, consistent with the requirements set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. This includes a requirement to provide
commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Arrangements for
Securing value for

money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
effectiveness

Governance

V
F
M

Risk assessment

We have previously reported to the Committee the outcome of our assessment of the risk of significant weaknesses
in the Council ’s VFM arrangements - that we had not identified any risks. We have revisited our risk assessment and
have not identified any additional risks.

Status of our VFM work

We have now completed our planned VFM procedures and have not identified any significant weaknesses in the
Council’s VFM arrangements. We consider findings from the work we have undertaken in response to an
objection to the 2020/21 financial statements received in August 2021 to be relevant to our assessment of the
Council’s governance arrangements as part of VFM responsibilities. We also consider issues arising from a
reported breach of the Teachers’ Pension Regulations to the Pensions Regulator, which we became aware of in
September 2021, to be relevant to our assessment of the Council’s governance arrangements as part of VFM
responsibilities.

We will therefore report areas for improvement in both of these areas together with associated
recommendations as part of the our VFM commentary in the Auditor’s Annual Report, which we expect to issue
as final prior to 31 December 2021.

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 5a



31

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 5a



32

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 with the audited financial statements
We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies
with relevant guidance.

Financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 and published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial statements. We
have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements. We became aware
in September 2021 that the Council reported a breach of the Teachers’ Pension Regulations to the Pensions Regulator in June. This relates to a failure over a number
of years dating back to 2007 to auto-enrol some part time and casual teaching staff onto the pension scheme as required following a change to regulations in 2007.
The underlying failure to auto-enrol was fully rectified from September 2017, so this is not a continuing issue. Work recently completed by a professional actuary has
now fully scoped the number of records and individuals impacted historically. The Council will not, however, be able to quantify the cost of the breach until further
work has been completed by the Teachers’ Pensions Service and impacted individuals are contacted to confirm whether or not they intend to join the scheme. An
additional disclosure has been made in Note 40 the 2020/21 financial statements to disclose this contingent liability, and both the issue and the Council’s response to
it have now been included in the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement. We consider this issue to be relevant to our assessment of the Council’s governance
arrangements as part of VFM responsibilities. We will therefore report areas for improvement together with associated recommendations as part of the our VFM
commentary in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The
extent of our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the NAO.

We have not yet been able to perform the procedures required by the NAO on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. This is because  HM Treasury are
continuing to review the online 2020/21 WGA Data Collection Tool (DCT) and update the guidance that is available for preparers. Based on the last available update
the DCT and guidance was not expected to be available until Autumn 2021. Therefore the 2020/21 WGA component data will not be available for auditors to review
until after that. Group Audit Instructions and the timetable for 2020/21 will necessarily follow any changes HMT make to the DCT and process.

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 5a



33

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit,
either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). As at 25 October 2021 we are satisfied that an
objection raised on the 2020/21 financial statements would not cause us to modify our audit report, including the need to report by exception, for the financial
statement opinion, value for money arrangements or other audit responsibilities for 2020/21. We consider findings from the work we have undertaken in response to
the objection to be relevant to our assessment of the Council’s governance arrangements as part of VFM responsibilities. We will therefore report areas for
improvement together with associated recommendations as part of the our VFM commentary in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

We will also not be able to issue the audit certificate to formally conclude the audit until the objection is resolved.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they
are significant to your oversight of the Council’s financial reporting process. They include the following:
• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Expected modifications to the audit report;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Findings and issues around the opening balance on initial audits (if applicable);
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Going concern; and
• Consideration of laws and regulations.

We have nothing to report.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 5a



34

Assessment of Control
Environment07

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 5a



35

Assessment of Control Environment

It is the responsibility of the Council to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy
and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Council has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the
systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and
extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in
internal control. We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in
your financial statements of which you are not aware, but wish to draw the following issues to your attention which follow-up on issues raised as part of our 2019/20
audit.

Completeness of the Authority’s lease register

During the course of our prior year work we identified a number of operating leases present on the Council’s lease register in 2019/20 that were not present in
2018/19 and prior years, even though the lease had been extant for a number of years.  This was as a result of ongoing work by the Council to collate and review all
contracts it is party to with the purpose of identifying contractual arrangements that may be operating lease agreements. The exercise was initiated by the Council in
anticipation of the adoption of a new accounting standard, IFRS 16, which will significantly change accounting requirements in respect of leases when fully adopted,
with adoption of the standard now planned for the 2022/23 financial year. We therefore recommended that the Council fully embed and continue to operate the new
arrangements it established to ensure that all operating leases are identified and recorded on its lease register. Our current year testing has identified one further
operating lease where the Council is lessee that has been extant since 2015 but not included on the lease register until 2020/21. The value of the omitted lease was
not significant and the amounts omitted from prior year disclosures do not impact our responsibilities. However, given the finding we are not able to conclude the
prior year recommendation has been fully addressed and therefore continue to raise it below.

Recommendation
Fully embed and continue to operate the new arrangements established by the Council to ensure that all operating leases are identified and recorded on the Council’s
lease register.

Financial Controls

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 5a



36

Assessment of Control Environment

Related party declarations

As part of our work to gain assurance over related party transactions disclosed in the 2019/20 financial statements we identified that the Councill did not routinely
request related party declarations from departing senior officers. Although we were satisfied that related party transaction disclosures appearing in the financial
statements were complete we concluded this should be a routine part of the Council’s processes to identify related party interests and transactions and raised an
associated recommendation for improvement.

Our current year work on related party transaction disclosures in the 2020/21 financial statements has identified a further instance of a senior officer leaving in-year
without providing a declaration of interests. We note the officer departed during November 2020 at around the time we issued the prior year recommendation, so
arrangements to address the recommendation were not developed at the time of departure. We also acknowledge that it is often difficult to obtain declarations
retrospectively. We were able to undertake alternative procedures to gain assurance that related party disclosures in the financial statements were complete.
However, given the finding we are not able to conclude the prior year recommendation has been fully addressed and therefore continue to raise it below.

Recommendation
Ensure that related party declarations are routinely requested obtained for senior officers leaving the Council prior to their departure.

Financial Controls (continued)

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 5a



37

Independence08

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 5a



38

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and the Council, and its members and senior management and
its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to the Council, its members and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to
other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise
independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.
There are no relationships from 1 April 2020 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The table below sets out a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2021 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard
and in statute.
As at the date of this report, there are no future services which have been contracted and no written proposal to provide non-audit services has been submitted.

Note 1 - In order to meet regulatory and compliance audit requirements not present in the market at the time of our most recent bid to PSAA, we undertook additional
work at a fee of £66,426 to deliver the audit in 2019/20 which we expect to reoccur in 2020/21 and subsequent years. This additional fee has been accepted by  the
Director of Finance and Support Services for 2020/21 and future years, but not 2019/20. The proposed recurrent fee variation has also not yet been approved by
PSAA.

Note 2 - These 2019/20 risk based fees have been agreed with the Director of Finance and Support Services except for £1,000 relating to additional work on the
Council’s Whole of Government Accounts return. They have not yet been approved by PSAA.  We are yet to fully quantify 2020/21 risk based fee variations and agree
them with the Council. We will provide an update in due course.

Final fee 2020/21 Planned fee 2020/21 Final Fee 2019/20

£ £ £

Scale Fee – Code work £90,561 £90,561 £90,561
Planned 2019/20  recurrent fee variation reflecting the underlying level of additional risk at the
Council yet to be agreed by PSAA (See Note 1) £66,426 £66,426 £66,426

Revised Proposed Scale Fee agreed by the Council to date £156,987 £156,987 £156,987

Risked based fee variations (see Note 2) TBC TBC £60,500

Total Fees TBC TBC £217,487

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 5a



39

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2020:
EY UK Transparency Report 2020 | EY UK

Other communications

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 5a



40

Appendices09

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 5a



41

Appendix A

Audit approach update
We summarise below our approach to the audit of the balance sheet and any changes to this approach from the prior year audit.

Our audit procedures are designed to be responsive to our assessed risk of material misstatement at the relevant assertion level. Assertions relevant to the balance
sheet include:

• Existence: An asset, liability and equity interest exists at a given date

• Rights and Obligations: An asset, liability and equity interest pertains to the entity at a given date

• Completeness: There are no unrecorded assets, liabilities, and equity interests, transactions or events, or undisclosed items

• Valuation: An asset, liability and equity interest is recorded at an appropriate amount and any resulting valuation or allocation adjustments are appropriately
recorded

• Presentation and Disclosure: Assets, liabilities and equity interests are appropriately aggregated or disaggregated, and classified, described and disclosed
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Disclosures are relevant and understandable in the context of the applicable financial reporting
framework

There were no significant changes to our audit approach apart from the additional work we were required to undertake to address the requirements of the new auditing
standard on accounting estimates. This primary impacted out audit procedures on:

• The revaluation of land and buildings classified as Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Investment Property (IP) and Surplus Assets.

• Pension liability and asset valuation.

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 5a



42

Appendix B

Summary of communications

In addition to the above specific meetings and letters the audit team met with the management team multiple times throughout the audit to discuss audit findings.

Date Nature Summary

Throughout the
year

Meetings, calls and
emails.

The Associate Partner and Senior Manager has been in regular contact with the Director of Finance and Support Services
and the corporate finance team in respect of the Council’s risks, accounts closedown and the audit approach.

Throughout the
year

Meetings, calls and
emails.

The Associate Partner has met with the Director of Finance and Support Services and Chief Executive on a ad hoc basis
throughout the year to discuss key audit findings and reporting up to the date of issue of this report.

All Regulation,
Audit and Accounts
Committee
meetings held in
the year

Committee
attendance

The Associate Partner and/or Senior Manager have attended those meetings of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts
Committee held throughout the financial year and to the date of issue of this report. All pre-meetings have also been
attended.
Specific reports issued and communications with the Committee are detailed in Appendix C.

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 5a



43

Appendix C

Required communications with the Regulation, Audit and Accounts
Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the those charged with governance of UK entities. We have detailed these here together with a reference of
when and where they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit planning report – dated June 2021

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team.

Audit planning report – dated June 2021

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report – dated October 2021

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 5a



44

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty related to going

concern
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation

and presentation of the financial statements
• The appropriateness of related disclosures in the financial statements

No conditions or events were identified, either
individually or together to raise any doubt
about West Sussex County Council’s ability to
continue for at least 12 months from the date
of our report.

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited
by law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report – dated October 2021

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee where appropriate regarding
whether any subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial
statements.

Audit results report – dated October 2021

Fraud • Enquiries of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee to determine whether they
have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Regulation, Audit and Accounts
Committee responsibility.

Audit results report – dated October 2021

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 5a



45

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report – dated October 2021

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence
Communications whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.
For public interest entities and listed companies, communication of minimum requirements
as detailed in the FRC Revised Ethical Standard 2019:
• Relationships between EY, the company and senior management, its affiliates and its

connected parties
• Services provided by EY that may reasonably bear on the auditors’ objectivity and

independence
• Related safeguards
• Fees charged by EY analysed into appropriate categories such as statutory audit fees,

tax advisory fees, other non-audit service fees

Audit Plan – dated June 2021 and
Audit Results Report – October 2021

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 5a



46

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

• Details of any inconsistencies between the Ethical Standard and the Fund’s policy for the
provision of non-audit services, and any apparent breach of that policy

• Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services
• Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply more restrictive rules than permitted

under the Ethical Standard
• The audit committee should also be provided an opportunity to discuss matters affecting

auditor independence

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

We have received all expected confirmations.

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements and that the audit committee may be aware of

We have asked management and those
charged with governance. We have not
identified any material instances or non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

Significant deficiencies in
internal controls identified
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit results report – dated October 2021

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 5a



47

Appendix C

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Written representations
we are requesting from
management and/or those
charged with governance

• Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit Results Report – October 2021

Material inconsistencies or
misstatements of fact
identified in other
information which
management has refused
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – October 2021

Auditors report • Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report
• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit Results Report – October 2021

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit Plan – dated June 2021 and
Audit Results Report – October 2021

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 5a



48

Appendix D

Draft management representation letter

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.
4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a
system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate
financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We have disclosed to you
any significant changes in our processes, controls, policies and procedures that
we have made to address the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our system of
internal controls.
5. There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit
and pertaining to the latest period presented.
B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud
1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are
responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, including fraud.
2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.
3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws
or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Council (regardless of
the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations by
“whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters:
• involving financial statements;
• related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination

of material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements;
• related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be
fundamental to the operations of the Council’s activities, its ability to continue
to operate, or to avoid material penalties;

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the
financial statements of West Sussex County Council (“the Council”) for the
year ended 31 March 2021. We recognise that obtaining representations from
us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant
procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the Council financial position of West
Sussex County Council as of 31 March 2021 and of its income and expenditure
for the year then ended in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination
of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you
considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify -
nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other
irregularities, should any exist.
Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
A. Financial Statements and Financial Records
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  We believe
the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) and cash
flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and are free of
material misstatements, including omissions.  We have approved the financial
statements.
.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 5a



49

Appendix D

Draft management representation letter

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in
making accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and
consistently applied to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
6. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
7. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or
other requirements of all outstanding debt.
8. From the date of our last management representation letter at 20 November
2020 through the date of this letter we have disclosed to you any unauthorized
access to our information technology systems that either occurred or to the best
of our knowledge is reasonably likely to have occurred based on our investigation,
including of reports submitted to us by third parties (including regulatory
agencies, law enforcement agencies and security consultants), to the extent that
such unauthorized access to our information technology systems is reasonably
likely to have a material impact to the financial statements, in each case or in the
aggregate.
D. Liabilities and Contingencies
1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees,
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.
2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims,
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.
3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 40 to
the financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.

• involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal
controls, or others; or

• in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-
compliance with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
1. We have provided you with:
• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the

preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation
and other matters;

• Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of
the audit; and

• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and
all material transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial
statements, including those related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council
and committees held through 2020/21 to the most recent meeting of the
Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee held on 8 November 2021.
4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the
Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of
which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets,
liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary
transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as
well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period end.  These
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the
financial statements.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 5a



50

Appendix D

Draft management representation letter

I. Estimates
Revaluation of land and buildings classified as Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE), Investment Property (IP) and Surplus Assets
1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in performing the revaluation
of land and buildings classified as PPE, IP and surplus assets have taken into
account all relevant information and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic of
which we are aware.
2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and
data used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in
performing the revaluation of land and buildings classified as PPE, IP and surplus
assets.
3. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in performing the revaluation
of land and buildings classified as PPE, IP and surplus assets appropriately reflect
our intent and ability to carry out the revaluation on behalf of the entity.
4. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect
to the accounting estimate, including those describing estimation uncertainty and
the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, are complete and are reasonable in the
context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2020/21.
5. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been applied in
undertaking the revaluation of land and buildings classified as PPE, IP and surplus
assets.
6. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate and
disclosures in the financial statements, including due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Pension Liability and Asset Valuation
7. We confirm that the significant judgments made in performing the pension
liability and asset valuation have taken into account all relevant information and
the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic of which we are aware.
8. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and
data used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in
performing the pension liability and asset valuation.

E. Going Concern
1. Notes 41 and 42 to the financial statements disclose all the matters of
which we are aware that are relevant to the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans for
future action, and the feasibility of those plans.
F. Subsequent Events
1. Other than as described in Note 38 to the financial statements, there have
been no events, including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic,
subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the
financial statements or notes thereto.
G. Other information
1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Statement of Accounts 2020/21, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is
consistent with the financial statements.
H. Use of the Work of a Specialist
1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate
the valuation of land an d buildings classified as property, plant & equipment,
investment property and surplus assets and valuation of pension liabilities and
assets, and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in
determining the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements
and the underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any
instructions to be given to the specialists with respect to the values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise
aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or
objectivity of the specialists.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 5a



51

Appendix D

Draft management representation letter

9. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in performing the pension
liability and asset valuation appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry
out the revaluation on behalf of the entity.
10. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with
respect to the accounting estimate, including those describing estimation
uncertainty and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, are complete and are
reasonable in the context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
11. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been
applied in undertaking the pension liability and asset valuation.
12. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate
and disclosures in the financial statements, including due to the COVID-19
pandemic.
Retirement benefits
1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All
significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been
identified and properly accounted for.

Yours faithfully,

_______________________
Katharine Eberhart, Director of Finance and Support Services

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Regulation,
Audit and Accounts Committee.
_______________________
Dr Nigel Dennis, Chairman of the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee

Management Rep Letter

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 5a



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 5a



Ref: EY-000092651-01

West Sussex County Council

29 October 2021

Draft Auditor’s Annual Report
Year ended 31 March 2021

Page 65

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Contents

West Sussex County Council 1

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA
website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of
engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin
and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply
with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and
procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee and management of West Sussex County Council in accordance with the
statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee and management
of West Sussex County Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee and management of  West
Sussex County Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the
service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel
Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we
can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our
professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

Section Page
01 - Executive Summary 02

02 - Purpose and responsibilities 05

03 - Financial statements audit 07

04 - Value for Money 15

05 – Other reporting issues 37

Appendix 1 – Fees 40

Page 66

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 1

Executive Summary

Page 67

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary: Key conclusions from our 2020/21 audit

West Sussex County Council 3

Area of work Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:

Financial statements We expect to issue an unqualified opinion – the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Council as at 31 March 2021 and of its expenditure and income
for the year then ended. The financial statements have been
prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2020/21.
We plan to issue our auditor’s report on the week commencing 1
November 2021.

Going concern We expect to conclude that the Director of Finance and Support
Service’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Consistency of the Statement of
Accounts 2020/21 and other
information published with the
financial statements

We expect to conclude that financial information in the Statement
of Accounts 2020/21 and published with the financial statements
was consistent with the audited accounts.

Consistency of the Pension Fund
annual report and other information
published with the financial
statements

We expect to conclude that financial information in the Pension
Fund Annual report and published with the financial statements
was consistent with the audited accounts.

Area of work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

Value for money (VFM) We expect to have no matters to report by exception on the
Council’s VFM arrangements.

We have included our VFM commentary in Section 04.

Consistency of the annual
governance statement

We expect to conclude that we are satisfied that the annual
governance statement was consistent with our understanding of
the Council.

Public interest report and other
auditor powers

We expect to have no reason to use our auditor powers.

Page 68

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary: Key conclusions from our 2020/21 audit

West Sussex County Council 4

As a result of the work we carried out we have also:

Outcomes Conclusion
Issued a report to those charged with
governance of the Council
communicating significant findings
resulting from our audit.

We issued an Audit Results Report dated 14 September 2021 to the
Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee on 22 September 2021.
We will issue an updated Audit Results Report to the 8 November
meeting of the Committee.

Issued a certificate that we have
completed the audit in accordance
with the requirements of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and
the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code
of Audit Practice.

We have not yet issued our certificate for 2020/21 as we have not
yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office
on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. The guidance
for 2020/21 is delayed and has not yet been issued, and is not
expected until December 2021 at the earliest.

We have also not yet completed the work necessary to address an
objection received from a local elector. We are satisfied that this
work does not have a material effect on the financial statements or
on our work on value for money arrangements.

Fees
We carried out our audit of the Council’s financial statements in line with PSAA Ltd’s “Statement of
Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies” and “Terms of Appointment and  further guidance
(updated April 2018)”. As outlined in the Audit Results Report we were required to carry out additional
audit procedures to address audit risks in a number of areas. As a result, we intend to agree an associated
additional fee with the Director of Finance and Support Services. We include details of the audit fees in
Appendix 1.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council staff for their assistance during the course of our
work.

Helen Thompson

Partner/Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Page 69

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 2

Purpose and
responsibilities

Page 70

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose and responsibilities

West Sussex County Council 6

Purpose
The purpose of the auditor’s annual report is to bring together all of the auditor’s
work over the year. A core element of the report is the commentary on VFM
arrangements, which aims to draw to the attention of the Council or the wider
public relevant issues, recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of
recommendations issued previously, along with the auditor’s view as to whether
they have been implemented satisfactorily.

Responsibilities of the appointed auditor
We have undertaken our 2020/21 audit work in accordance with the Audit Plan
that we presented to the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee on 19 July
2021. We have complied with the NAO's 2020 Code of Audit Practice,
International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the
NAO.

As auditors we are responsible for:

Expressing an opinion on:

• The 2020/21 financial statements;

• Conclusions relating to going concern; and

• The consistency of other information published with the financial statements,
including the annual report.

Reporting by exception:

• If the governance statement does not comply with relevant guidance or is not
consistent with our understanding of the Council;

• If we identify a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements in place to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources; and

• Any significant matters that are in the public interest.

Responsibilities of the Council
The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its financial statements,
and governance statement. It is also responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.

This report summarises
our audit work on the
2020/21 financial
statements.

Page 71

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement
Audit

Page 72

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 8

Financial Statement Audit

Key issues
The Annual Report and Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show
how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial
management and financial health.

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the financial statements. We
reported our initial detailed findings to the 22nd September meeting of the
Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee and will issue an updated Audit
Results Report to the 8th November meeting of the Committee. We outline
below the key issues identified as part of our audit, reported against the
significant risks and other areas of audit focus we included in our Audit Plan.

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex County Council

We expect to issue an
unqualified audit opinion
on the Council’s 2020/21
financial statements.

Significant risk Conclusion
Misstatements due to fraud or error
- management override of controls
An ever present risk that management
is in a unique position to commit fraud
because of its ability to manipulate
accounting records directly or
indirectly, and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively.

We did not identify any:
• material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material

management override;
• instances of inappropriate judgements being applied; or
• any other transactions during our audit which appear unusual or

outside the Council‘s normal course of business.

Inappropriate capitalisation of
expenditure
Under ISA 240 there is a presumed
risk that revenue may be misstated
due to improper revenue recognition.
In the public sector, this requirement is
modified by Practice Note 10 issued
by the Financial Reporting Council,
which states that auditors should also
consider the risk that material
misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure
recognition. We have identified an
opportunity and incentive to capitalise
expenditure under the accounting
framework, to remove it from the
general fund.

In response to the risk we:
• Tested capital additions to ensure that the expenditure incurred

and capitalised is clearly capital in nature.
• Sought to identify and understand the basis for any significant

journals transferring expenditure from revenue to capital codes
on the general ledger at the end of the year.

In undertaking this testing we focused on the judgements taken by
management.
Our testing of capital additions identified no instances where
expenditure had been inappropriately capitalised.
Our data analytical procedures did not identify any journal entries
that incorrectly moved expenditure into capital codes.

Continued over.

Page 73

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 9

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion
Valuation of operational land and
buildings, investment property and
surplus assets
Land and buildings is the most
significant balance in the Council’s
balance sheet. The valuation of land and
buildings is complex and is subject to a
number of assumptions and judgements.
A small movement in these assumptions
can have a material impact on the
financial statements. We made use of
our own professionally qualified
valuation specialists to support our work
in this area.

We were satisfied that land and buildings, investment property and
surplus assets were valued appropriately and that was correctly
reflected in the financial statements. In particular, we were
satisfied that a material decrease in the valuation of the Council’s
schools is attributable to this change in estimation technique, and
is not indicative of management override or error in either the
current or prior period.
We identified one asset where the approach taken by the Council’s
valuer was insufficiently granular. Although we concluded this did
not have a material impact on our 2020/21 financial statements
responsibilities, this is the second year we have flagged this issue
and it is important that it is addressed.

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex County Council (continued)

Page 74

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 10

Financial Statement Audit

Other area of audit focus Conclusion
Pension liability and asset valuation
The Pension Fund liability is a material
balance in the Balance Sheet.
Accounting for this scheme involves
significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an
actuary to undertake the calculations on
their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500
and 540 require us to undertake
procedures on the use of management
experts and the assumptions underlying
fair value estimates.

One adjustment was made as a result of our work to reflect the
Council’s share of the difference between the estimated value of
Pension Fund assets submitted to Hymans Robertson and the
final audited value of Pension Fund assets in its 2020/21 financial
statements. This adjustment had the impact of reducing the IAS 19
pension liability on the Council’s balance sheet by £7.8 million and
increasing the pension fund reserve by an equivalent amount.

Going concern disclosures
The Council is required to carry out an
assessment of its ability to continue as a
going concern for the foreseeable future,
being at least 12 months after the date of
the approval of the financial statements.
There is a risk that the Council’s financial
statements do not adequately disclose
the assessment made, the assumptions
used and the relevant risks and
challenges that have impacted the going
concern period.

Management produced a going concern assessment to the end of
the 2022/23 financial year. This was supported by cash flow
forecasts and liability benchmark analyses which assessed the
underlying need to borrow. The cash flow forecast and liability
benchmark analyses modelled two reasonable scenarios. We
reviewed and challenged both the cash flow forecasts and liability
benchmark analyses and the assumptions that underpinned them.
We also reviewed and further challenged the going concern
disclosure made by the Council. Based on all of this we are
satisfied that management’s assessment is reasonable and
supportable, and that disclosures in the financial statements are an
adequate reflection of management’s assessment that it remains
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Accounting for Covid-19 related grant
funding
The Council received government
funding in relation to Covid-19. Whilst
there is no change in the CIPFA Code or
accounting standard (IFRS 15) in
respect of accounting for grant funding,
the emergency nature of some of the
grants received and in some cases the
lack of clarity on any associated
restrictions and conditions, means that
the Council will need to apply a greater
degree of assessment and judgement to
determine the appropriate accounting
treatment in 2020/21.

Based on our work we were satisfied that the accounting treatment
adopted for Covid-19 related government grants accorded with the
Council’s assessment of whether it was acting as agent or
principal, the underlying conditions of the grant and whether those
conditions had been met.
Based on our own assessment and intelligence gained from other
audits we further challenged the Council’s assessment that it acts
as agent in its role in administering the Adult Social Care Infection
Control Grant. We ultimately concluded that the Council’s
assessment was not unreasonable, but asked management to
further disclose the basis for their judgement.
Our detailed testing of funding claimed under the Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme identified no issues.

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex County Council (continued)

Continued over.

Page 75

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 11

Financial Statement Audit

Other area of audit focus Conclusion
Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
The Council has three material PFI
arrangements. PFI accounting is a
complex area and therefore more
susceptible to error, and a detailed
review of these arrangements was
undertaken by our internal expert in
2016/17 and followed-up in 2017/18 and
2018/19.

Based on our work we are satisfied that:
• Inputs to the PFI models were supported by evidence.
• The models continued to operate correctly.
• Output from the models was correctly reflected by the relevant

accounting entries and disclosures in the financial statements.
• PFI assets were correctly accounted for and disclosed.

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex County Council (continued)

Page 76

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 12

Financial Statement Audit

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex County Council (continued)

Audit differences
We identified a relatively small number of errors and misstatements in disclosures which management
corrected.
Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that
we judged would be material for the financial statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied
Planning
materiality

We determined planning materiality to be £31.9m as 1.8% of gross revenue expenditure
reported in the accounts. We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the
principal considerations for stakeholders in assessing the financial performance of the
Council.

Reporting
threshold

We agreed with the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee that we would report to
the Committee all audit differences in excess of £1.6m.

We also set specific materiality of £16,000 for officer remuneration, related party transaction, members’
allowances and exit packages disclosures appearing in the financial statements. This reflects our
understanding that an amount less than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the
financial statements in relation to these areas. This specific materiality is based on 1% of our audit differences
threshold.

Page 77

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 13

Financial Statement Audit

Key issues
The Annual Report and Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show
how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial
management and financial health.

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the financial statements. We
reported our detailed findings to the 22nd September meeting of the
Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee. We outline below the key issues
identified as part of our audit, reported against the significant risks and other
areas of audit focus we included in our Audit Plan.

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex Pension Fund

We expect to issue an
unqualified audit opinion
on the Pension Fund’s
2020/21 financial
statements.

Significant risk Conclusion
Risk of manipulation of investment
income and valuation
An ever present risk that management is in a
unique position to commit fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly, and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls
that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. We assessed that the risk of
manipulation of investment income and
valuation through management override of
controls is most likely to affect investment
income and assets in the year, specifically
through journal postings.

We did not identify:
• any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of

material management override;
• any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied;

and
• any other transactions during our audit which appeared

unusual or outside the Pension Fund’s normal course of
business.

Our journals testing confirmed there were no unusual or
unexpected postings.
We were able to agree the disclosure of investment values to
custodian, fund manager and property valuer reports in the
detailed investment note and throughout the financial
statements. We also undertook further detailed testing to gain
assurance over the valuation of investments with no issues.

Page 78

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 14

Financial Statement Audit

Other area of audit focus Conclusion
Valuation of property investments
We consider the valuation of property
investments to be of a higher degree of
inherent risk because of the higher
degree of estimation uncertainty.
Management is required to make
material judgemental inputs and apply
estimation techniques, supported by a
professional valuer, to arrive at the year
value of property investments carried in
the Net Assets Statement.

Based on our work we are satisfied that:
• The Fund’s valuer is appropriately qualified and the scope of

their work was adequate.
• Inputs to the valuation process and assumptions made by the

valuer are reasonable
• Accounting entries in the financial statements correctly reflected

the valuation report.
The Fund made one change to its disclosure in this area to reflect
that directly owned property investments should be categorised as
level 2 rather than 3 in the fair value hierarchy given no Covid-19
‘material valuation uncertainty’ caveat is disclosed in the valuer’s
report as was the case in the prior year.

Valuation of level 3 investments
We consider the valuation of Level 3
investments to be of a higher degree of
inherent risk due to the unobservable
inputs making up the valuations. This
involves a high degree of estimation
from the fund manager as audited
accounts supporting the valuation are
only produced up to Quarter 3 of the
financial year.

We:
• Triangulated the valuation reports from the fund managers and

custodians to the entries in the financial statements.
• Obtained audited financial statements supporting the

investments, controls assurance reports and bridging letters for
the controls reports to year end.

• Considered the work performed by the fund managers,
including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed,
their professional capabilities and the results of their work.

• Challenged the key assumptions used by the fund managers in
valuations and considered further whether specialist support is
needed to support our work in this area. We concluded no such
further support was necessary.

Tested accounting entries had been correctly processed in the
financial statements.

Going concern
There is a presumption that the Fund will
continue as a going concern for the
foreseeable future. However, the Fund
was required to carry out a going
concern assessment that is
proportionate to the risks it faces.
The Fund was required to ensure that its
going concern disclosure within the
statement of accounts adequately
reflects its going concern assessment
and in particular highlights any
uncertainties it identified.

We were satisfied that management’s assessment that it is
appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on a going
concern basis is reasonable and supported by evidence, including
a cashflow forecast, for the foreseeable future.
The initial disclosure made by the Fund did not make clear that
cashflow forecasting in support of management’s assessment
extended forward by at least 12 months from the likely reporting
date or set out assumptions made by management in producing
the forecast. The disclosure was updated to reflect this.

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex Pension Fund (continued)

Page 79

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 15

Financial Statement Audit

Financial Statement Audit – West Sussex Pension Fund (continued)

Audit differences
We identified a relatively small number of errors and misstatements in disclosures which management
corrected.
Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that
we judged would be material for the financial statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied
Planning
materiality

We determined planning materiality to be £54.8m as 1% of net assets reported in the
accounts. We consider net assets to be one of the principal considerations for
stakeholders in assessing the financial performance of the Fund.

Reporting
threshold

We agreed with the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee that we would report to
the Committee all audit differences in excess of £2.7m.

Page 80

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money

Page 81

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 17

Value for Money (VFM)

Scope and risks
We have complied with the NAO’s 2020 Code and the NAO’s Auditor Guidance
Note in respect of VFM. We presented our VFM risk assessment to the 19 July
2021 Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee meeting which was based on a
combination of our cumulative audit knowledge and experience, our review of
Council and committee reports, meetings with senior officers and evaluation of
associated documentation through our regular engagement with management
and the finance team. We reported that we had not identified any risks of
significant weaknesses in the Council’s VFM arrangements for 2020/21.

Reporting
We expect to complete our planned VFM arrangements work in the week
commencing 1 November 2021 and not to identify any significant weaknesses in
the Council’s VFM arrangements. As a result, we expect to have no matters to
report by exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

VFM Commentary
In accordance with the NAO’s 2020 Code, we are required to report a
commentary against three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services.

• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly
manages its risks.

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve
the way it manages and delivers its services.

We did not identify any
risks of significant
weaknesses in the
Council’s VFM
arrangements for
2020/21.

We expect to have no
matters to report by
exception in the audit
report.

Our VFM commentary
highlights relevant
issues for the Council
and the wider public.

Page 82

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 18

VFM Commentary

Introduction and context
The 2020 Code confirms that the focus of our work should be on the
arrangements that the audited body is expected to have in place, based on the
relevant governance framework for the type of public sector body being audited,
together with any other relevant guidance or requirements.Audited bodies are
required to maintain a system of internal control that secures value for money
from the funds available to them whilst supporting the achievement of their
policies, aims and objectives. They are required to comment on the operation of
their governance framework during the reporting period, including arrangements
for securing value for money from their use of resources, in a governance
statement.

We have previously reported the VFM work we have undertaken during the year
including our risk assessment. The commentary below aims to provide a clear
narrative that explains our judgements in relation to our findings and any
associated local context.

For 2020/21, the significant impact that the Covid-19 pandemic has had on the
Council has shaped decisions made, how services have been delivered and
financial plans have necessarily had to be reconsidered and revised.

We have reflected these national and local contexts in our VFM commentary.

Financial sustainability
How the body ensures that it identifies all significant financial pressures that are
relevant to its short term and medium-term plans and builds these into them

The Council sets a balanced revenue budget annually. The budget supports
delivery of the Council’s key priorities, which for 2020/21 were set out in the West
Sussex Plan 2017-2022. The budget is therefore used to ensure financial
resources are aligned to areas where the Council believes it will secure the
greatest benefit to residents of West Sussex and the County as a whole. The
annual budget is then linked to the medium-term aspirations of the Council
through its medium-term financial strategy (MTFS), which considers a three year
forward view, and its capital programme which extends forward for 5 years.
Council members are full engaged in this process, including a briefing on the
MTFS including options for managing pressures and savings followed by further
review by scrutiny committees. The budget considers known and expected
demand and cost pressures and known and expected changes in funding. The
wider financial environment has become increasingly challenging for local
government in recent years and the Council has needed to operate against a
backdrop of reduced funding from traditional sources and increased demand for
services. This has meant that difficult choices have needed to be made and rises
in council tax have been necessary. In making these choices the Council seeks
to focus on the areas it believes will make the biggest difference to people in
West Sussex.  An annual programme of savings is needed to balance the
budget, with decisions on significant savings proposals taken by the Cabinet.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to plan and manage its
resources to ensure that
it can continue to deliver
its services.

Page 83

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 19

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)
The Council seeks to take decisions about savings decisions as early as
possible, providing as much notice as possible to those affected and maximising
the prospect for savings delivery.

In common with many upper tier authorities the Council has faced particular
financial pressures in recent years in Adult and Children’s Social Care Services,
driven by both increasing demand and case complexity. Cost pressures in
Adult’s services in particular are forecast to continue to grow. Additional funding
has also been required to address the findings of national inspectorates which
required improvements in the Council’s Children’s and Fire and Rescue
Services. To fund the Children’s Services improvement journey adequately, the
MTFS included £12m of temporary and permanent investment in 2020/21. The
Council made £1.8m available to support the Fire and Rescue Service
improvement plan in 2019/20, plus £1.2m continuing recurrent funding to
address the concerns raised.

The Covid-19 pandemic had a significant impact on Council operations, services
and finances in 2020/21. This will continue to have a significant effect into
2021/22 and beyond, although the extent and duration of the impact remains
uncertain. Covid-19 impacts have needed, therefore, to be considered in both the
Council’s current financial management arrangements and future financial plans.
The Council’s regular reporting of financial and service performance in its
Quarterly Performance Monitor (QPM - called the Total Performance Monitor up
to September 2020) has now been updated to reflect the impact of Covid-19 and
sets out how this impacts specific services and the Council as a whole.  This is
underpinned by a bespoke recording approach within the Council’s main
financial system, which seeks to discretely identify the costs incurred and funding
received from Government.  The MTFS planning framework also now reflects the
potential impact of Covid-19, both from the potential funding and budget pressure
perspectives.

Despite the impact of Covid-19 the Council was able to deliver a revenue
underspend of £3.1m on portfolio budgets in 2020/21. In addition, there was an
underspend on its contingency budget of £5.7m along with additional business
rates grant of £0.1m, producing an overall level of underspending of £8.9m. This
underspending has been transferred to reserves, helping to replenish reserves
used in the preceding year and important to provide increased resilience to deal
with future uncertainty. This represents a significant improvement in the Council’s
delivery against revenue budget compared to the prior year, which is an
achievement given the impact of the pandemic and other demands on the
Council in the year. The Council recognises, however, this has only been
possible as result of the Covid-19 grant funding received.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to plan and manage its
resources to ensure that
it can continue to deliver
its services.

Page 84

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 20

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)
The closing financial position of the Council has also improved. Overall, the
Council’s usable reserves increased by £34.8m overall compared to the prior
year including a £39.5m increase in the budget management reserve, which
provides the Council with increased capacity to manage future budget pressures.
A significant proportion of the increase (£15.3m) is, however, being held to
compensate for the Council’s share of future billing authority collection fund
deficits when they arise. Significant budget gaps remain in the last iteration of the
MTFS produced in February 2021. Although the budget gap is now closed for
2021/22, there was a cumulative budget gap of £53.9m reported over the
following three financial years at that point in time.

Delivery of the capital programme has been affected by the pandemic with
spending totalling £92.5m for the year, against an updated capital programme of
£103.4m approved in February 2021, a total variation of £10.9m or 10.5%.
Looking forward, the Council’s Capital Strategy for the period 2021 to 2041 was
approved by full Council in February 2021, and within that the five-year Capital
Programme. The total value of schemes in the 2021/22 to 2025/26 capital
programme is £666.5m. The capital programme is ambitious, reliant on additional
borrowing and partly designed to generate recurrent benefits to minimise
pressures on the revenue budget. Ensuring that it is delivered therefore remains
important.

How the body plans to bridge its funding gaps and identifies achievable savings

At the last update of the MTFS in February 2021 the Council was able to report a
balanced budget for 2021/22 but with a remaining cumulative budget gap of
£53.9m to the 2024/25 financial year, with £35.8m of that funding shortfall
forecast to occur in 2022/23. This forecast will need to be reduced further
through a savings programme identified by the Council as the budget principles
set by the Council make clear that reserves are not used to fill ongoing budget
pressures. The identification of a robust programme of savings to bridge funding
gaps while minimising the adverse impact on residents therefore remains a
necessary part of annual budget setting and medium-term financial planning.
Both a bottom-up and top-down approach is taken. In late spring/early summer
the published MTFS, as approved by the Council in February, is revised to
reflect:

• The latest guidance from government on core funding (the Settlement Funding
Assessment).

• An update of the tax base for council tax and business rates, with realignment
to the latest information from the district and boroughs.

• The latest Office of Budget Responsibility inflation forecasts.

Known and emerging service pressures and savings proposals are considered
and quantified as part of this and are required to be supported by directorate
templates, including impact assessments. Other savings are driven by strategic

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to plan and manage its
resources to ensure that
it can continue to deliver
its services.

Page 85

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 21

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)
decisions that are taken at Cabinet level.  Following this initial appraisal, funding
sources, service pressures and savings are kept under continual review.  In late
November/early December, control totals are generated from the MTFS to
enable services to build their budgets up for the following year.  The totals
include service provisions for inflation, budget pressures and adjustments for
savings.  Final control totals are issued following the outcome of the local
government finance settlement in mid-December.

In all cases the emphasis in budget planning continues to be on delivering
efficiencies, cost reductions and income generation with a view to protecting core
services along with delivering the Council’s strategic priorities as set out in its
Council Plan for 2021-2025.  The Council’s stated aim has been to avoid
arbitrary or across the board budget reductions, as it considers these would not
reflect the Council’s priorities and would be more difficult to assess in terms of
impact on its broad range of responsibilities.  Instead the Council seeks to focus
on specific measures to both understand impacts and address any adverse
impacts for services or support. The Council’s Capital Strategy and Capital
Programme are aligned to this and set out how the Council proposes to invest in
assets to deliver its priorities and alleviate current or forecast future pressures on
the revenue budget.

The Council routinely reports the delivery of savings in its QPM, as part of its
wider monitoring of financial and business performance. Historically the Council
has a good track record of delivery and reports that around £258m of savings
had been delivered at the end of 2020/21 since 2010, typically delivering over
90% of planned savings each year. However, in 2019/20 the Council failed to
deliver 30% of its planned savings. The budget for 2020/21 assumed savings of
£18.4m. Only £12.0m or 65% of this was achieved as originally envisaged or
delivered by other means.  The Council considers the failure to deliver against
target in both 2019/20 and 2020/21 is at least partly due to the impact of Covid-
19, related national lockdowns and the need to act on a responsive basis to the
service delivery and other operational challenges brought about by the
pandemic. The Council therefore considers that the majority of the shortfall in
savings at the end of 2020/21 was mitigated by the use of Covid-19 grant
funding. £28.2m of unutilised Covid-19 grant funding at the end of the year was
carried forward into 2021/22 to fund the continuing costs of the pandemic. Given
the reported impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s ability to deliver planned
savings this is likely to be a necessary funding source to contain 2021/22
revenue spending within budget.

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) remains an important source of funding for
the Council. The DSG budget includes formula funding delegated to schools and
early years providers, central expenditure on providing services such as Out of
School Learning, Special Educational Needs expenditure such as placements in
Independent and Non-Maintained Special Schools and specialist support teams,
and central support services such as admissions. The DSG is a specific grant

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to plan and manage its
resources to ensure that
it can continue to deliver
its services.

Page 86

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 22

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)
and has to be separately accounted for in the financial statements. Any balance
or deficit at the year-end must be carried forward to be dealt with in the following
year. During 2020/21 updated accounting guidance has been issued which is
clear that overspending against DSG is not required to be charged to councils’
general funds, but should be ring-fenced in a new DSG adjustment account
which is treated as an unusable reserve. The new DSG adjustment account has
a closing debit balance of £10.4m which represents the Council’s closing
cumulative DSG overspend at the end of the year. The level of overspending in
the year was approximately £9m. The total approved Growth Fund budget in
2021/22 is £2.5m. This budget was reduced to its current level in January 2021,
to try to ensure that the 2021/22 budget would not overspend as it has done in
previous years.

The DSG conditions of grant for 2020/21 require all councils with a deficit at the
end of 2019/20 and 2020/21 to submit a plan to the Department for Education for
managing their future DSG spend. The plan will need to be kept regularly
updated throughout the year to reflect the most recent forecast position and be
viewed as an on-going live document. The Council’s plan has not yet been
produced but is expected by September 2021 at the latest for consideration by
Cabinet. Although not an explicit cost pressure on the Council’s general fund it is
important a viable deficit recovery plan is produced as quickly as possible.

How the body plans finances to support the sustainable delivery of services in
accordance with strategic and statutory priorities

The annual budget and MTFS sit alongside and facilitate the Council’s Plan for
2021-25. The Council Plan has been developed collaboratively with elected
members, staff, partners and residents to prioritise the most important areas the
Council needs to focus on in the future. This is done for the Council’s limited
resources to be spent on the areas where it is needed most. It has been
developed in parallel with the budget for 2021/22 and is fully funded.  As it is
aligned to the budget and MTFS, it is intended to act as the framework in which
investment decisions can be made based on agreed priorities and the outcomes
the Council wants to achieve.

The process of defining the Council Plan has been designed with the intention of
bringing together business planning, financial planning and risk management
processes.  It is intended to provide the framework for the Council’s decision
making and planning to ensure that it is making the best use of the resources
available, properly understanding the value for money delivered and at the same
time remaining focused on the delivery of priority outcomes.  It therefore should
also highlight the difficult service delivery choices that will need to be made in a
resource constrained environment given the continued impact of Covid-19 and
the financial challenges the Council already faced prior to the onset of the
pandemic. The planning process also includes the redesign of business
processes to transform services, reduce costs and manage demand.  Part of the
funding for the work to achieve these ongoing improvements comes from the

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to plan and manage its
resources to ensure that
it can continue to deliver
its services.

Page 87

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 [West Sussex County Council 23

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)
Government’s flexible use of capital receipts initiative which allows, if certain
conditions are met, the Council to fund the revenue costs of transformation from
ring fenced capital financing sources.

The Council undertook its own analysis of its reserves position at the start of the
financial year against comparable councils and plans to update this later in 2021
as part of its wider arrangements to update the MTFS as well as considering
CIPFA’s financial resilience index. The analysis produced at the start of the year
shows an average level of usable reserves when compared to its statistical
neighbours when adjustments are made to reflect the relative size of the Council.
The Council has been able to add to its usable reserves at the end of 2020/21,
including the budget management reserve. This is important given the high level
of uncertainty over futures costs and funding brought about by Covid-19.

How the body ensures that its financial plan is consistent with other plans such
as workforce, capital, investment, and other operational planning which may
include working with other local public bodies as part of a wider system

The integration between the Council’s business and financial planning has been
described above, including the link to its capital strategy and capital programme.
The development of the annual budget and MTFS, and detailed assumptions on
the operations of the Council that underpin them, is now being driven by its vision
of the future as set out in the Council Plan, which is also then linked to the key
governance and control arrangements of the Council, for example its
performance and risk management arrangements.

During the year the Council has also needed to respond to the challenges of
Covid-19, which has required working together with other partners including
district and borough councils, whether in terms of social care, support to
vulnerable individuals and families, safely re-opening schools, supporting
suppliers and partners including the NHS and school transport. This has shown
that the Council is able to react and work effectively as part of wider system of
public services.

How the body identifies and manages risks to financial resilience, e.g. unplanned
changes in demand, including challenge of the assumptions underlying its plans.

The Council’s arrangements for identifying its significant financial pressures as
part of its annual budgeting and medium-term financial planning have been
already been considered as part of this commentary. Performance against those
plans is monitored in the QPM which provides an integrated assessment of the
Council’s business and financial performance. This integrated monitoring
enables the Council to detect unplanned changes to its service activities and
operations with potential to impact its financial resilience on an ongoing basis so
they can be considered in its continuous budget planning. Its risk and
performance management arrangements, which are considered further below as

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to plan and manage its
resources to ensure that
it can continue to deliver
its services.

Page 88

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 24

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)
part of this commentary, also feed into this. The corporate planning process has
been designed with the intention of further integrating business planning,
financial planning and risk management processes.

The Council also seeks to maintain an adequate level of usable reserves, which
it has been able to increase during 2020/21. This provides contingency for
unexpected changes and sustains financial resilience. Reasonable general and
pay-specific contingencies are built into the annual revenue budget and the
budget management reserve is used to provide a stable platform for service
planning as the MTFS is developed. It is intended to be the first call on the
Council resources to deal with any unforeseen in year expenditure if the revenue
contingency budget were to be exhausted.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to plan and manage its
resources to ensure that
it can continue to deliver
its services.

Page 89

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 25

VFM Commentary

Governance
How the body monitors and assessed risk and how the body gains assurance
over the effective operation of internal controls, including arrangements to
prevent and detect fraud

The Chief Executive is responsible for approving the Council’s Corporate Risk
Management Strategy and for reviewing the effectiveness of risk management.
The Executive Leadership Team is responsible for implementing the Corporate
Risk Management Strategy throughout the Council. The Director of Finance and
Support Services is responsible for the monitoring and reporting all significant
risks.  Heads of Service throughout the Council are responsible for managing
specific areas of risk that apply in their specific businesses and are to be aligned
with business planning. The Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee is
responsible for ensuring that Internal Audit’s programme of work considers the
Council’s risks.  Members including through the scrutiny committees are
responsible for ensuring that there are appropriate processes in place for
effective risk management. The authority’s Risk Management Strategy is
refreshed annually and shows the alignment of strategic risks and priorities.
There are linked corporate and directorate risk registers, with risks scored
according to their likelihood of occurrence and severity of impact. Quarterly
review and update of the corporate risk register is reported as part of the
Council’s QPM and reviewed by the Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee,
which considers the effectiveness of risk management arrangements more
generally.

Management has a range of monitoring arrangements to ensure controls are
operating effectively, including Internal Audit.   The annual Internal Audit Plan
incorporates an appropriate level of coverage in respect of the County Council’s
system of internal control. In 2020/21 the Head of Internal Audit has concluded
that the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control is
‘reasonable’. This is an improvement from the ‘limited’ opinion in the prior year
which related to weaknesses in the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements identified by external inspections of Children’s Services and the
Fire and Rescue Service. Where deficiencies in governance arrangements are
identified they are reported in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement
(AGS) with related actions for improvement included in the AGS action plan. This
includes concerns raised by external inspectorates, external audit and any
limited assurance audit reports which are issued by Internal Audit.

Minimising any losses to fraud and corruption is an essential part of ensuring that
all of the Council’s resources are used for the purposes for which they are
intended. To facilitate this the Council has an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy
that sets out its overall policy in respect to fraud and corruption. The Strategy is
based on inter-related procedures designed to frustrate any attempted fraudulent
or corrupt act. These cover culture, prevention, detection, investigation and
training. This is further supplemented by separate policies on whistleblowing and
anti-bribery.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 90

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 26

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
The Monitoring Officer and Director of Finance and Support Services work with
the Head of Internal Audit to devise and prioritise a counter-fraud work plan. The
Monitoring Officer is notified of all specific instances of suspected fraud and the
outcome of all related investigations in addition to regular meetings with the
Director of Finance and Support Services and the oversight of the AGS and
actions arising from it. This is supplemented by the lead role of the Monitoring
Officer in overseeing the use of the Whistleblowing Policy and tracking
complaints about the Council’s systems and procedures made through
individuals using the policy or more direct referrals.

The Whistleblowing Policy is designed to offer a route for challenges to
processes or actions within the Council where Council staff need confidentiality.
The use and effectiveness of the policy is overseen by the Standards Committee.
Following a refresh of the policy in early 2020 action has been taken to improve
its accessibility and visibility for staff and to provide advice and guidance to
officers responsible for dealing with referrals under the policy. This work has
particular significance in light of the more critical issues raised by the Children’s
Commissioner’s report relating to the Council’s internal culture.

How the body approaches and carries out its annual budget setting process

The Council sets a balanced revenue budget annually. The budget intended to
support delivery of the Council’s key priorities, which for 2020/21 were set out in
the West Sussex Plan 2017-2022.  For 2021/22 to 2024/25 the Council’s
financial planning is based on the refreshed priorities set out in the Council Plan.
We have considered the linkage between the annual budget and the MTFS in the
section of this VFM commentary which considers how the Council identifies all
significant financial pressures that are relevant to its short term and medium-term
plans.

Responsibilities and procedures for the annual budget process are set out in the
Council’s Constitution. The Cabinet is responsible for issuing guidance on the
general content of the budget reflecting political priorities. It is the responsibility
of Executive Directors to ensure that budget and capital programme estimates
reflecting the Council Plan are submitted to the Cabinet and that these estimates
are prepared in line with guidance issued by the Cabinet.

The Director of Finance and Support Services is responsible for ensuring that an
overall revenue budget and capital programme summarising service budget
estimates is prepared on an annual basis for consideration by the Cabinet,
before submission to the County Council, along with a forward financial forecast
in line with Government funding notifications.  The Performance and Finance
Scrutiny Committee considers strategic issues relating to the budget including
comment on individual portfolio budgets. We are satisfied that this process was
followed in both 2020/21 and to date in 2021/22 despite the unprecedented
levels of uncertainty and volatility brought about by the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 91

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 27

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
How the body ensures effective processes and systems are in place to ensure
budgetary control; to communicate relevant, accurate and timely management
information (including non-financial information where appropriate); supports its
statutory financial reporting requirements; and ensures corrective action is taken
where needed

The Council’s constitution sets out the Director of Finance and Support Services’
responsibility for providing appropriate financial information to enable both the
revenue budgets and the capital programme to be monitored effectively.  There
is a requirement to monitor expenditure against budget allocations and report to
the Cabinet on the overall position on a regular basis, as part of an overall
performance management reporting process.  It is the responsibility of Executive
Directors and Directors to control income and expenditure within their area and
to monitor performance, taking account of financial information provided by the
Director of Finance and Support Services.  They should report on variances
within their own areas.  They should also take any action necessary to avoid
exceeding their budget allocation and alert the Director of Finance and Support
Services to any problems.  Any new proposal containing significant financial
implications must take note of the Director of Finance and Support Service’s
advice as well as that of the relevant Executive Director or Director.

The Council’s financial performance (revenue and capital), savings delivery and
business performance are monitored on a monthly basis through the Monthly
Monitor report, with a more detailed QPM report produced each quarter for
consideration by the Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet.
The Council therefore takes an integrated approach to its financial and business
performance reporting.  The QPM reports actual financial results to date together
with a forecast position at the end of the year. It identifies areas where
performance is not meeting targets together with the corrective action that needs
to be taken to address this.

How the body ensures it makes properly informed decisions, supported by
appropriate evidence and allowing for challenge and transparency. This includes
arrangements for effective challenge from those charged with governance/audit
committee

Ofsted undertook an inspection of the Council’s Children’s Services during
2018/19 which concluded the overall effectiveness of the service was
inadequate. Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 92

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 28

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
Services published the results of an inspection it undertook in late June 2019.
The service was rated as requiring improvement in two of the three areas
reviewed, and inadequate in the third area. In 2018/19 we concluded that the
issues highlighted by the Children’s Services review in particular were indicative
of weaknesses in organisational governance arrangements. We therefore
concluded that adequate arrangements were not in place to take informed
decisions and issued an except for qualification of the 2018/19 value for money
conclusion. Although good progress was made to address these issues by the
Council in 2019/20 we concluded the revised arrangements were not in place for
much of the 2019/20 year and that further work was required for them to become
fully embedded in the operations of the Council.

Progress on the reset and reboot initiative in improving corporate governance
arrangements

The Council initiated a ‘good governance’ review in January 2020 in response to
concerns raised during 2019 about aspects of the Council’s governance
arrangements and culture following the external inspections. Prior to the
commencement of this review, some significant changes to the Council’s
corporate governance arrangements were approved by the County Council
aimed at improving the Council’s democratic systems to achieve greater
transparency, clarity of role and accountability. Output from the good governance
project was first reported in July 2020. Since then the Council has made further
progress in implementing and embedding recommendations from the good
governance review within its governance arrangements to ensure there is more
accountability, transparency and collective decision making. Although good
progress has been made, the Council remains aware that it continues to need to
change. The good governance project identified key areas for it to focus on in
terms of:

• Culture, including a commitment to put residents at the heart of everything the
Council does.

• Creating strong and visible collective member and officer leadership.

• Working closely with partners.

• Investing in and properly valuing staff.

• Making the way the Council works as straightforward as possible.

The Council Plan is intended to do this. A number of other initiatives have also
been progressed during the year including development of the People
Framework which has sought to improve leadership skills and provide
development for senior officers, member training and roll out of the directorate
business planning process, which is linked to the Council’s annual cycle for
budgeting and update of the MTFS which we have already set out in more detail
as part of this commentary.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 93

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 29

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
Progress on addressing service performance and governance weaknesses in
Fire & Rescue Services and Children’s Services

It is clear the investment made into the Fire and Rescue Service has resulted in
significant improvements. In November 2020 a decision was made to close the
Independent Advisory Panel in recognition of the considerable improvements
made by the Service. The panel recognised that there has been an
overwhelming level of progress since its inception at the end of 2019 and
subsequent HMICFRS revisit which recognised the rapid pace of change and
positive impact this was having on staff.

Following the inspection of Children’s Services in May 2019, Ofsted undertook a
further, focused review of the service in October 2020. The report highlighted that
on balance positive progress had been made overall, but areas for improvement
remained. A revised Statutory Direction was issued in December 2020
acknowledging that conditions at the Council had improved which supported the
continued improvement of Children’s Services. As a result, the decision on
whether the responsibility for the delivery of Children’s Services should be
transferred from the Council to a Children’s Trust was deferred by 12 months to
allow for further improvements to occur before a final decision is taken. MHCLG
then confirmed in January 2021 that the improvement journey for Children’s
Services no longer needed to be the subject of direct ministerial over-sight.
Ofsted has now published the results of a further monitoring visit of Children’s
Services on 18 and 19 May 2021. Although the inspection was not in 2020/21 it
is indicative of progress made in addressing prior weaknesses during the year
and therefore relevant to our responsibilities. Ofsted report the Council is making
steady progress, but some further improvement is still required.

Given the progress made in addressing service weaknesses, and the embedding
of revised governance arrangements within the Constitution and supporting
arrangements through the Reset and Reboot initiative, we have concluded there
are no longer significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements. However,
there are still areas for improvement as recognised by both Ofsted in its latest
report and the Council itself. The improvements made by the Council in
addressing identified areas of weakness are particularly commendable in the
wider context of Covid-19 and the unprecedented demand on services and
changes in operational practice that has created.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 94

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 30

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
During the year the Council made compensation payments for loss of
employment to three former senior officers. We undertook detailed work, partly in
response to an objection to the 2020/21 financial statements received from a
local elector, to determine whether there was a legal basis for the payments
made and that the Council had followed its own required processes for approval
of the payments. We found the payments to be lawful and that there was
sufficient available evidence to show approval of the payments had been given in
accordance with the requirements of the Council’s constitution.  We therefore do
not consider this to be a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements.
However, signed settlement agreements could not easily be located to support
one of the payments which was concluded at the very start of the pandemic in
April 2020 with Council officers largely working from home which prevented one
version of the agreement being signed by all parties. We concluded that quality
of the audit trail supporting approval of the payments needed to be improved. We
therefore raise the following associated recommendation for improvement.

Recommendation for improvement
Ensure that the Council’s defined process for determination and approval of
senior officer compensation payments is followed consistently and that sufficient
evidence is retained to demonstrate this. In particular:

• Original signed settlement agreements need to be retained in all cases which
fully support the amounts agreed and paid

• Clear audit trails documenting the basis of settlement agreements reached
need to be retained.

How the body monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as meeting
legislative/regulatory requirements and standards in terms of officer or member
behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or declarations/conflicts of interests)

The responsibilities and statutory requirements of all officers and members is
embedded in the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) and
Constitution. The underlying principles of the Code are derived from a series of
important reports on governance including the Nolan Committee Report on
Standards in Public Life and cover openness, inclusivity, integrity and
accountability. All significant actions by the Council which may have legal
implications either require authorisation by the Director of Law and Assurance or
individuals specifically delegated to act on behalf of the Director as set out in the
Council’s decision-making rules. Decision makers are also required to act within
the Council’s Standing Orders and scheme of delegation which makes provision
for legal and constitutional advice to inform such decisions. The Council’s

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 95

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 31

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
Constitution contains a number of check points at which officers are able to
identify whether decisions are being taken in compliance with the prescribed
rules which ensure legal compliance. All executive decisions and policy
proposals are considered and advised on by legal officers with access to all
current legal provisions and guidance and who use a knowledge and research
resource which updates all legislation and sources of advice automatically and
provides alerts for significant changes in the law. Legal Services undertake
regular reviews of current and expected legislative changes and maintain plans
for training officers within the service and for providing relevant information to
lead officers in the areas of service affected. Actions or changes resulting are
supported by internal legal advice. This continues to be supplemented by the
partnership working with legal services at East Sussex County Council and
Brighton and Hove City Council as part of the joint arrangements where common
areas of work and training on areas of shared interest are used to exchange
knowledge and skills. In addition, there are other professional reference groups
within local government which provide access to knowledge and experience from
similar organisations.

There is an established Code of Conduct contained in the Council’s Constitution
with which all members are expected to comply. A parallel code for officers sits in
the suite of Human Resources policies. The Council has also adopted policies
relating to responsibilities for ethical behaviour including equality and
sustainability. Decision-making is supported by advice from officers and internal
guidance that should ensure compliance with these policies. The codes of
conduct define the standards of behaviour for members and officers.  All
members undertake training from the Monitoring Officer on the member code of
conduct.  Member conduct is monitored by the Standards Committee, which has
a remit to deal with complaints of breaches of the member Code of Conduct.  All
members complete the register of interests and receive quarterly reminders on
the subject of personal interest declarations, and the need to disclose interests is
a standing item on all formal meeting agendas for both officers and members.
Officer interests, including gifts and hospitality, should be published on the
County Council’s website annually. The Council’s 2020/21 AGS recognises,
however, that this has not happened for some time. Our testing of the Council’s
financial statements has confirmed that processes have been maintained to
identify member and officer interests to inform the disclosure of related party
transactions the Council is required to make in its accounts. As part of our
2019/20 work we observed related party declarations were not routinely
requested from senior officers leaving the Council. Although we were satisfied
that related party transaction disclosures appearing in the financial statements
were complete, we concluded this should be a routine part of the Council’s
processes to identify related party interests and transactions and raised an
associated recommendation for improvement. Our testing of related party

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 96

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 32

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
transactions in 2020/21 has showed that this recommendation had not been
implemented for the one senior officer leaving the Council during the year, but
this was due to the recommendation only being agreed at around the time that
officer left in November 2020. It is important this is fully addressed in 2021/22.

In September 2021 we were made aware that the Council reported a breach of
the Teachers’ Pension Regulations to the Pensions Regulator in June 2021. This
has ultimately resulted in a further contingent liability being disclosed in the
2020/21 financial statements. Details of the issue and an associated action to
address it have also now been included in the 2020/21 Annual Governance
Statement. The failure to auto-enrol was fully rectified from September 2017 so
this is not a continuing issue, and we do not consider the issue of itself to be
indicative of a significant weakness in the Council’s governance or internal
control arrangements. We have, however, concluded that:

• It has taken too long for the Council to identify the scale of the issue. The
potential failure to auto-enrol some staff was first identified in 2014 but the
scale of the issue was not fully understood. The Council commissioned a
review by Hymans Robertson in June 2020 and has more information of the
potential scale of the issue but further work is required to fully determine the
financial impact.

• The Council’s arrangements did not flag this as a contingent liability that
should be disclosed in 2020/21 or any earlier year financial statements. There
is no evidence that management deliberately excluded the issue from the
accounts but its significance, and the potential materiality of its impact, should
have been appreciated following completion of the work to quantify the
number of impacted cases.

• The Council’s arrangements did not initially flag the issue of a breach report to
the Pensions Regulator as an internal control issue that required disclosure in
the AGS. Again there is no evidence that management deliberately excluded
the issue from the AGS, but it should have been included in the 2020/21 AGS
following issue of the breach report to the Pensions Regulator in June 2021,
and potentially prior to that given the ongoing work to fully quantify the number
of impacted cases.

Considering the above we raise the following associated recommendation for
improvement.

Recommendation for improvement
Improve arrangements for the identification of contingent liabilities and other
significant accounting and control issues for production of the financial
statements and annual governance statement. In particular, consider how
evolving and potentially relevant issues are shared between Executive
Leadership Team members, to ensure that disclosures in the financial
statements and annual governance statement meet the requirements of extant
accounting standards and are complete.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
to make informed
decisions and properly
manage its risks.

Page 97

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 33

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
How financial and performance information has been used to assess
performance to identify areas for improvement

The Council Plan includes KPIs that will be used to monitor the performance of
the Council in its identified key priority areas from 2021/22. For 2020/21 the KPIs
were based on the previous West Sussex Plan 2017-2022.  The KPI dashboard
is discussed as part of Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees. The dashboard is used
to flag areas of required improvement, devise actions to address the weakness
identified and monitor progress.

Scrutiny Committees are responsible for considering reported performance
against the KPIs and ensuring effective and efficient mitigating actions are taken
to ensure targets set are being met. This performance dashboard is publicly
available on the Council’s website and based around the agreed strategic
priorities of the Council. As set out previously in this commentary routine
reporting of performance is combined with financial monitoring in the QPM.

How the body evaluates the services it provides to assess performance and
identify areas for improvement

As set out previously in this commentary, service performance against Council
priorities is considered regularly throughout the year through both the
performance dashboard, which is made publicly available on the Council
website, and as part of the quarterly QPM which shows a complete picture of
both business and financial performance. This enables the Council to identify
services that are not performing as expected by reference to KPI outcomes
against targets which from 2021/22 will be based on the Council’s refreshed
strategic priorities as per the Council Plan.  The QPM includes an exception
report to highlight areas where performance is deteriorating or not expected to
achieve annual target to clearly flag where remedial action needs to be taken.
The Council continues to monitor and review its corporate priorities and MTFS to
ensure that the plan and KPI’s are aligned to the changing environment
especially given the uncertainties caused by Covid-19 and the impact of the
pandemic on the Council’s operations and finances.

At year end performance indicators measured in relation to the West Sussex
Plan 2017-22 priorities, reflected that 83% were at Green (64%) or Amber (19%)
levels.  There were several measures with no data to report in 2020/21 due to
Covid-19 where Central Government bodies such as the NHS and the
Department for Education made the decision in early 2020 to suspend monitoring
due the unprecedented impact of the pandemic on public service provision.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to use information
about its costs and
performance to improve
the way it manages and
delivers services.

Page 98

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 34

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
How the body ensures it delivers its role within significant partnerships, engages
with stakeholders it has identified, monitors performance against expectations,
and ensures action is taken where necessary to improve

The County Council works with a variety of stakeholders. This includes a range
of public bodies, local authorities, the NHS and Sussex Police. Other tiers of
local government are important partners in many areas of service delivery,
strategic planning and community development. There are both formal and
informal forums in place for regular liaison with elected members and senior
officers in the district and borough councils, including regular meetings of all of
the leaders of the councils (West Sussex Leaders’ Board), to discuss issues of
common interest and regular meetings of all chief executives (West Sussex Chief
Executives’ Board).

Regular meetings with other partners, most notably the NHS Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG), are held at various levels and between members
and officers on operational, commissioning and service planning. For a number
of years, the Council has operated a joint service commissioning and pooled
budget agreement with the NHS to cover a range of social care and NHS
services. The West Sussex Better Care Fund (WSBCF) was established in 2015.
This is a joint operation between the Council and NHS West Sussex CCG to
provide integrated health and social care support within the area. The Council
acts as host in the arrangement. The WSBCF is monitored by the West Sussex
Health and Wellbeing Board with related reporting presented to the Performance
and Finance Scrutiny Committee. Due to planned changes in NHS
commissioning arrangements brought about by the creation of Integrated Care
Systems, and a review of Council priorities, it is expected that the systems and
arrangements for joint commissioning will be updated during 2021/22.

Internal Audit issued a ‘limited assurance’ review of S75 (pooled budget)
governance during 2020/21. The review focused on the governance framework
for the Section 75 Agreement for the commissioning and pooled funding of
various services between the Council and the CCG. Testing highlighted that the
overarching partnership agreement in relation to the Section 75 agreement for
the commissioning and pooled funding of services had diminished over time
resulting in lack of clarity in respect of the agreed governance framework and
performance measurement. The Terms of Reference in the Agreement state that
the Joint Commissioning Strategy Group (JCSG) should oversee the
development of joint commissioning intentions. While we do not consider this to
be a significant weakness it is an area that needs to be addressed as part of the
Council’s planned changes to its arrangements in this area.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to use information
about its costs and
performance to improve
the way it manages and
delivers services.

Page 99

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 35

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
Partnership pledges, referred to as ‘growth deals’ have been made between the
Council, and all district and borough councils in the county. Each five-year, tailor-
made growth deal identifies specific priority projects to bring local improvements
for West Sussex residents, businesses and visitors.

The Council established an arrangement with East Sussex County Council
effective from January 2020 intended to bolster leadership capacity and bring
more stability to the Council’s senior leadership which, as highlighted by the
results of external service inspections, had been lacking over recent years. This
led to the appointment of the shared Chief Executive. It also considered:

• ongoing work on further joint procurements including West Sussex and East
Sussex accessing each other’s Frameworks.

• Ongoing discussions about waste and highways management.

• Support for Children’s Services recruitment in West Sussex.

There have continued to be ad hoc arrangements for informal mutual support
between the two council leadership teams. Much of the strategic level activity
associated with the management of the response to the Covid-19 pandemic has
drawn on close working relations between the two management teams. It is
difficult to quantify the benefits of this joint working, but the leadership of the joint
chief executive has enhanced the ability of both Councils to manage the common
challenges that have been faced.

Where the body commissions or procures services, how the body ensures that
this is done in accordance with relevant legislation, professional standards and
internal policies, and how the body assesses whether it is realising the expected
benefits

The Council’s Standing Orders on Contracts and Procurement and the Financial
Regulations and Procedures provide rules for lawful and sound processes for
contract and spending decisions. These are managed by the Director of Law and
Assurance and Director of Finance and Support Services in consultation with the
Regulation Audit and Accounts Committee and supported by a group of officer
subject matter experts sitting as the Procurement Board. The intention is for this
to provide a single process for procurement planning, compliance with due
process and consistency of best practice. The Council plans to consider some
elements of its arrangements further as part of the ‘streamlined decision-making’
workstream from the good governance review, with the aim being to make
aspects of procurement activity simpler and more accessible to officers engaged
in commissioning.

The Council has developed a Procurement Strategy for 2019-2021 which sets
the framework in which it works to ensure that procurement delivers value for
money across all services and directly contributes to the achievement of the
Council’s strategic goals. The Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee is

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to use information
about its costs and
performance to improve
the way it manages and
delivers services.

Page 100

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 36

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
responsible for the overview of procurement and contract management. The
Committee reviews the performance of the Council and seeks to identify areas
where procured goods and services are not delivering expected benefits through
the performance dashboard, KPI’s and financial monitoring in the QPM
identifying significant overspending on projects and budgets. Covid-19 again
required the Council to adapt its arrangements in 2020/21. There were
supplementary procurement measures requiring governance for assurance that
payments and financial commitments made in response to the impact of the
emergency on suppliers and service providers were managed correctly and in a
timely way.

During the year Internal Audit undertook two reviews relating to procurement.
The first, undertaken as part of its anti-fraud programme of work, was to review
existing processes and controls against good practice guidance issued by
MHCLG in June 2020. This concluded the Council was generally meeting good
practice expectations with some opportunities identified for enhancements to the
existing framework. The second was of the Council’s processes and controls for
lower value (sub £100k) procurements. Although not formally reported at the time
of issue of the 2020/21 Internal Audit Annual Report a reasonable assurance
conclusion was expected to be given.

The Council has had the
arrangements we would
expect to see to enable
it to use information
about its costs and
performance to improve
the way it manages and
delivers services.

Page 101

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01 West Sussex County Council 37

VFM Commentary

Recommendations for improvement
As a result of the VFM procedures we have carried out we have agreed the
following recommendations with the Council:

Recommendation 1

Ensure that the Council’s defined process for determination and approval of
senior officer compensation payments is followed consistently and that sufficient
evidence is retained to demonstrate this. In particular:

• Original signed settlement agreements need to be retained in all cases which
fully support the amounts agreed and paid.

• Clear audit trails documenting the basis of settlement agreements reached
need to be retained.

Management Response:

Accepted. Full response to be updated in final report.

Recommendation 2

Improve arrangements for the identification of contingent liabilities and other
significant accounting and control issues for production of the financial
statements and annual governance statement. In particular, consider how
evolving and potentially relevant issues are shared between Executive
Leadership Team members, to ensure that disclosures in the financial
statements and annual governance statement meet the requirements of extant
accounting standards and are complete.

Management Response:

Accepted. Full response to be updated in final report.

The Council has agreed
two recommendations
which we will follow up
as part of our 2021/22
VFM arrangements
work.

Page 102

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting
Issues

Page 103

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Governance Statement
We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement,
identify any inconsistencies with the other information of which we are aware from our work, and consider
whether it complies with relevant guidance.
We completed this work and identified a small number of areas where further disclosure was required to
reflect the position at the Council. The Council amended the annual governance statement to include these
areas.
Whole of Government Accounts
We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of
Government Accounts consolidation pack submission. The guidance for 2020/21 is yet to be issued. We will
liaise with the Council to complete this work as required.

Report in the Public Interest
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest,
to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered
by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Other powers and duties
We identified no issues to date during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014, noting that we have not yet determined the objection received to the
2020/21 financial statements.

Other Reporting Issues

West Sussex County Council 39

Page 104

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Control Themes and Observations
As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and
determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. Although our audit was not designed to
express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant
deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit.
We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls.
Our audit identified two control issues which we brought to the attention of the Regulation, Audit and
Accounts Committee and raised associated recommendations for improvement. We did not identify any
significant deficiencies in internal control.

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

West Sussex County Council 40

Page 105

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Appendix A

Audit Fees

Page 106

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Our final proposed fees for 2020/21 are set out in the table below:

Audit Fees

West Sussex County Council 42

Description
Final Fee 2020/21

£
Planned Fee 2020/21

£
Final Fee 2019/20

£
Scale Fee – Code work 90,561 90,561 90,561
Planned 2019/20  recurrent fee
variation reflecting the underlying
level of additional risk at the Council
yet to be agreed by PSAA (See Note
1)

66,426 66,426 66,426

Revised Proposed Scale Fee agreed
by the Council to date 156,987 156,987 156,987

Risk based fee variations (see Note
2) TBC TBC 60,500

Fee for work on the objection
received on the 2020/21 financial
statements (see Note 3)

TBC TBC TBC

Total Fees TBC TBC 217,487

Note 1 - In order to meet regulatory and compliance audit requirements not present in the market at the time
of our most recent bid to PSAA, we undertook additional work at a fee of £66,426 to deliver the audit in
2019/20 which we expect to reoccur in 2020/21 and subsequent years. This additional fee has been
accepted by  the Director of Finance and Support Services for 2020/21 and future years, but not 2019/20.
The proposed recurrent fee variation has also not yet been approved by PSAA.
Note 2 - These 2019/20 risk based fees have been agreed with the Director of Finance and Support
Services except for £1,000 relating to additional work on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return. They have not yet been approved by PSAA.  We are yet to fully quantify 2020/21 risk based fee
variations and agree them with the Council. We will provide an update in due course.
Note 3 – Additional fee will be charged for the work undertaken in relation to the objection received on the
2020/21 financial statements. This work is always a change in scope that is not considered as part of the
scale fee. Given our work to be able to fully determine the objection remains ongoing we are not yet able to
quantify this.

Page 107

Agenda Item 5b



Ref: EY-000092651-01

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership
registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst &
Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

Page 108

Agenda Item 5b



 

Key decision: Not applicable 
Unrestricted 

 

Regulation Audit & Accounts Committee 

8 November 2021 

Overdue Medium & Low Priority Management Actions (October 2021) 

Report by Director of Finance & Support Services /Head of Southern Internal 
Audit Partnership 

 

Summary 

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Regulation Audit and Accounts Committee 
with an overview of overdue medium and low priority management actions following a 
review of ‘live’ reports (October 2021). 

Recommendations 

That the Committee note the status of overdue medium and low priority 
management actions (October 2021). 

Proposal 

1 Background and context 

 Under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, the Council is 

responsible for: 

 ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and 
that it has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the 
effective exercise of functions and includes arrangements for the 

management of risk; and 

 undertaking an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account 

public sector internal auditing standards and guidance. 

 In accordance with proper internal audit practices (Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards), the Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide regular status 

report to the Regulation, Audit & Accounts Committee, summarising: 

 The status of ‘live’ internal audit reports (outstanding management 
actions) 

 an update on progress against the annual audit plan: 

 a summary of internal audit performance, planning and resourcing 

issues; and 

Page 109

Agenda Item 6



 a summary of significant issues that impact on the Chief Internal 

Auditor’s annual opinion. 

 As part of this report any overdue high priority management actions are 
summarised in detail with an update from the responsible officer as to the 

reason for the delay in implementation and detail of progress made to date, 
along with a revised date for completion. 

 The report also provides a much higher-level summary in relation to medium 

and low priority management actions. 

 At the September meeting of the Regulation Audit & Accounts Committee the 
Chairman requested a full analysis of the medium and low priority overdue 

management actions. 

 Appendix A provides the latest position itemising 3 low priority and 10 medium 
priority actions that were overdue at October 2021, (a reduction of 1 low 
priority and 8 medium priority management actions from that report to the 

September Committee). 

2 Risk implications and mitigations 

Risk Mitigating Action (in place or planned) 

 

Services not addressing 

key management actions 
arising from the audit 
findings 

Follow up will be undertaken to ensure that 

agreed actions have been implemented.  A report 
detailing the status of high priority management 
actions will be presented to each meeting of this 

Committee for monitoring to ensure that key risks 
are addressed on a timely basis 

Katharine Eberhart 
Director of Finance and Support Services 

Contact Officer: Neil Pitman, Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership, 
neil.pitman@hants.gov.uk  

Appendices 

Appendix A – Overdue Medium & Low Priority Management Actions (October 
2021) 

Background papers 

None 

Page 110

Agenda Item 6

mailto:neil.pitman@hants.gov.uk


                                                                                                                                        Overdue Low & Medium Priority Management Actions (October 21) 

1 
 

 

Overdue ‘Low & Medium Priority’ Management Actions (October 2021) 
 

Audit Review Report 
Date 

Opinion Priority Due Date Revise Due 
Date 

 

   Low Medium   
 

Home to School Transport Mar 2019 Limited 1  30.04.20 31.12.21 

E-Income June 2019 Adequate 1  31.12.19 31.10.21 

Retained Firefighters Sept 2019 Adequate     

Document Management & Retention May 2020 Adequate     

Companies House – NFI (Proactive Fraud) Sep 2020 Limited  1 30.11.20 30.11.21 
    1 30.11.20 30.11.21 
    1 30.11.20 30.11.21 
       
       

Special Educational Needs Oct 2020 Limited  1 31.12.20 31.01.22 

Employers Contributions / Relationships Dec 2020 Reasonable  1 31.03.21 31.01.22 

School Traded Services Mar 2021 Reasonable  1 30.06.21 30.11.21 

Adult Establishments (Money Handling) 
 

Mar 2021 Limited  1 01.06.21 30.11.21 

       

S75 Governance Apr 2021 Limited  1 30.06.21 31.03.22 

Debt Recovery Apr 2021 Reasonable     

   1  30.05.21 30.11.21 

Children Safeguarding (QAF) May 2021 Reasonable  1 30.06.21 30.11.21 

       

       

Management of Restructures May 2021 Limited  1 31.07.21 31.10.21 

Contract Management (GrassTex) Jun 2021 Reasonable 
 

   
       

Total   3 10   

Direction of travel since last progress report (September 2021)   -1 -8   

 

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix A



                                                                                                                                        Overdue Low & Medium Priority Management Actions (October 21) 

2 
 

 

 

Home to School Transport - Low 
 

Observation:  Education set the policy for home to school transport and the provision of school transport is via the Transport Bureau.  

There is currently no service level agreement in place identifying the agreed process and timescales in place between the two teams to ensure both parties 
are meeting the required expectations and agreed escalation channel for any resolution(s) required. 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Draft SLA to be introduced 30.04.20 31.12.21 Some work has been carried out on the outstanding Service Level 

Agreement in relation to the delivery of Home to School Transport for 

Entitled Children.  This is ongoing with the parties having to postpone 

completion due to the pressures from COVID-19 and thereafter the 

changes to transport arising at key times in the pandemic and in the 

recovery period.  (Bill Leath – 21.10.21) 

 

 

E-Income - Low 
 

Observation:  Capita Pay360 has replaced Netbanx for taking payments; however, Netbanx has not yet been decommissioned. It is still possible for 
customers to make payments to Netbanx; payments made to the authority via Netbanx must be manually reallocated by Finance 
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Netbanx to be decommissioned following a fix for the 
Registration Service payments using 360; this is currently 
under investigation 

31.12.19 31.10.21 The necessary integration to Pay360 has not yet been successful.  This is 
actively being worked on and has just one outstanding issue that is in 
the process of being resolved. (Eleanor Aldred – 08/10/21) 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix A



                                                                                                                                        Overdue Low & Medium Priority Management Actions (October 21) 

3 
 

 

 

Companies House – NFI (Proactive Fraud) - Medium 
 

Observation:  Directorate registers were reviewed to determine whether the matches identified through the National Fraud Initiative had been declared by 
employees and appropriately recorded.  Testing highlighted examples where employees interests remained current but had not been recorded on the 
directorate register(s).  There is guidance available on Conduct and Propriety that covers the requirements for employees to declare business interests of 
themselves and direct family members, however, it is not actively promoted within the authority, and does not cover the mechanism for recording business 
interests, only the requirements for Directors to hold a register of interests.   

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Directors, where gaps in declarations identified, to be 
notified and for position to be rectified. Output to be 
reported to ELT 

30.11.20 30.11.21 The Directors were contacted in line with the planned action and 
deadline, however referral back to ELT is still required  

Revise guidance to include guidance on interests due to 
employment and mechanisms for recording. 

30.11.20 30.11.21 Yet to be actioned. This will be added to tasks associated with the 
Statements of Assurance for Directors  

Guidance for all staff to be revised, reissued, and promoted 
through internal communications 

30.11.20 30.11.21 Yet to be actioned. This will be added to tasks associated with the 
Statements of Assurance for Directors  

 

Special Educational Needs - Medium 
 

Observation:  The planning for school places tool utilises data from both Mosaic (SEND numbers) as well as the number on roll provided by the schools. 
When the EDGE software was introduced, there were several differences identified across schools where the figures recorded in Mosaic did not total the 
number of children on roll recorded by the school.  There is greater confidence in the data following data cleansing undertaken by the Mosaic Reporting 
Team and Planning for School Places Team. The aim was to improve the accuracy of the data recorded on Roll and in Mosaic and to increase the accuracy of 
the planning data available in EDGE, however it is reliant on the data held being complete and accurate.  
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

All fields associated with placement need mandatory 
elements i.e., start/end dates.  The service needs to be able 
to add ‘future’ placements when agreed and reports 
designed to pull all this data.  The service often works on 

31.12.20 31.01.22 Resource has been prioritised on more important reporting elements 
which have yet to be achieved.  A number of mandatory fields have 
been added to aid use of the system, but it is not yet possible to add 
future placements.   

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix A



                                                                                                                                        Overdue Low & Medium Priority Management Actions (October 21) 

4 
 

‘agreed’ places that don’t start yet, but Mosaic will only 
show those currently on roll and being funded. 

 

 

Employers Contributions & Relationships (Pensions) - Medium 
 

Observation:  All new admission agreements need to be approved by the Interim Deputy Head of Finance.  WSCC’s Constitution under the Scheme of 
Delegation (part 3 (sections 258/259)) provides for this approval to be the Director of Finance and Support Services.  Onward delegation may be allowed if 
recorded in writing and signed off by both the delegating and receiving officers and be reviewed at least annually.  The current onward delegation is out of 
date and refers to an officer who has left the authority. 
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Onward delegation to be reviewed and agreed. 31.03.21 31.01.22 We are currently reviewing the Pensions Team to ensure that it is fit for 
purpose following the findings of the Scheme Advisory Board Good 
Governance project. Once this piece of work has been concluded we will 
be able to put in place the onward delegations necessary.  

 

 

 

Schools Traded Services - Medium 
 

Observation:  A SWOT analysis of all school traded services within the Council was carried out in September 2019, identified potential threats to the 
achievement of the objectives for growing the school services. Some risks have been captured on the Directorate Risk Register, however many identified 
from the SWOT analysis have not been formally documented with actions agreed on how to mitigate these.  

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Compare risks with register and update where required. 30.06.21 30.11.21 The LGA Review outputs have superseded the original SWOT. Formation 

of the strategy and the restructure are also captured as a requirement 

by the LGA review and are being progressed 

A draft strategy is expected to be approved for November 2021.  

 

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix A



                                                                                                                                        Overdue Low & Medium Priority Management Actions (October 21) 

5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Adult Establishments (Money Handling) - Medium 
 

Observation:  Within three of the establishments visited, review of resident folio balances highlighted 11% to be in deficit (overdrawn). Existing procedures 
(Provider Services Financial Administration) state that ‘folios must not be overdrawn’. As the custodians of client monies, it is not appropriate for 
establishments to subsidise expenditure of those with overdrawn folios from the funds of other residents. 
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Review and update the current Provider Services Financial 
Administration procedures. 

01.04.21 30.11.21 On hold to incorporate learning from the outcomes of the Hammonds 
review to further inform the guidance. 

 

 

S75 Governance - Medium 
 

Observation:  The Terms of Reference in the Overarching Partnership Agreement state that the Joint Commissioning Strategy Group (JCSG) should oversee 
the development of joint commissioning intentions, monitor progress against these intentions and receive regular reports on performance. Key 
performance indicators for the measurement of performance of the Services have not been agreed. Financial performance related activity trends are 
monitored and reported, but there is no formal process for monitoring or reporting on the operation or overall effectiveness of the arrangements against 
Joint Commissioning Intentions. In addition, the Section 75 Agreement states that Lead Commissioners should report to the JCSG at least annually, on the 
operation of the Arrangements; there was no evidence of annual reports by Lead Commissioners. 
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Joint Commissioning Strategic Performance indicators will 

need to align with place-based partnership measures, 

which are under development.  

30.06.21 31.03.22 This work will take longer previously anticipated due to the impact of 
Covid-19 and the need to align health and social care planning 
processes. The council will also shortly be undertaking a review of 
commissioning arrangements and governance 

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix A



                                                                                                                                        Overdue Low & Medium Priority Management Actions (October 21) 

6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Debt Recovery - Low 
 

Observation:  Sundry and Adult debt is monitored monthly and monitoring reports are made available on SharePoint where they may be accessed by Heads 
of Service however, there is no formal requirement or record that these are being accessed on a regular basis. If debt monitoring is not utilised by service 
areas, this will put added pressure on Debt Recovery Officers and Legal Services to recover debt which could be chased and resolved by the service. 
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

The information for the majority of the debt (ASC) is added 
to the dashboards of AIG (Adults Income Group) which is re 
starting now Service Finance is back in house. Strategic 
Finance who budget monitor are represented. 

30.05.21 30.11.21 A Senior Debt Recovery Officer has recently been appointed to the team 

and is currently working on the review and update of the Debt Recovery 

SharePoint site. The intention is to have dedicated debt detail for each 

service (across both ASC and Sundry Debt) which is updated monthly 

and is open for review by the relevant services.  
 

ASC reports will be reviewed as part of the Adult Income Group (AIG) 

meetings which are due to recommence soon. 

 

Children’s Safeguarding QAF - Medium 
 

Observation:  The framework was updated to reflect the findings of the peer review report (May 2020) and the internal audit position statement (Aug 
2020). The last update was in November 2020 since then there have been changes that are not captured in the framework.   
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Update and relaunch Quality Assurance Framework – New 
senior leadership structure and panel names. 

30.06.21 30.11.21 The Quality Assurance Framework has been updated and will be 
officially relaunched following sign off by DLT 

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix A



                                                                                                                                        Overdue Low & Medium Priority Management Actions (October 21) 

7 
 

 

Management of Restructures - Medium 
 

Observation:  The policies and procedures relating to restructuring and redundancies were found to be regularly reviewed and up to date, with the majority 
being reviewed and amended in 2019. However, we noted that the Trade Union Consultation on Organisational Change had a review date recorded of 
December 2008. It was not clear whether the document has been reviewed since, as there was no version control.  
 

 

Management Action  
Original 

Due Date  
Revised 

Due Date  
Latest Service Update  

Implementation of any required updates. 31.07.21 31.10.21 Delayed slightly as in light of consultation with the trade unions.   

 

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Key decision: Not applicable 

Unrestricted 
 

Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee  

8 November 2021 

Quarterly Review of Corporate Risk Management 

Report by Director of Finance and Support Services 

 

Summary 

This Committee has responsibility for oversight of the Council’s risk management 

arrangements. 

The risk relating to the impact working from home may have on the mental and 
physical wellbeing of staff has been removed as staff have the option to safely utilise 

council buildings. The risk that children’s services will fail to make the necessary 
improvements to progress from the previous ‘inadequate’ rating has reduced in 
likelihood due to the outcome of the Ofsted monitoring visit. 

All future Risk Management Lunch ‘n’ Learn sessions will be delivered as a webinar 

and this course is now available for staff in Districts and Boroughs at nil cost. The 
follow-on course (Risk Management in Practice) has been designed for face-to-face 

delivery using a combination of instruction via PowerPoint and syndicate/group work 
and will involve staff working through the WSCC risk management process using a 

generic scenario.  

Recommendation 

(1) The Committee is asked to review the information detailed in the report and 
current Corporate Risk Register, and provide comment as necessary 

 

Quarterly update 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Committee has responsibility to monitor the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements. That role, together with a description of the 
Council’s approach to risk management, is set out in the Constitution at Part 4 

Section 4. It covers the allocation of responsibilities, including the quarterly 
review of risk management activity. 

2 Background and context 

2.1 During the preceding quarter there have been the following changes to the 

corporate risk register. 

Page 119

Agenda Item 7



Risk 
No 

Risk Action Reason 
Current 
Score 

CR69 Children’s services will 
fail to deliver an 
acceptable provision to 

the community 

Risk severity 
reduced 

Due to outcome of 
recent Ofsted 
monitoring visit 

15 

CR71 Mental and physical 

wellbeing (and 
emotional resilience) of 

staff due to 
requirement to work 
from home 

Risk closed Trigger/cause 

(instructed to work 
from home) is no 

longer relevant, 
and any controls 
are embedded in 

BAU 

n/a 

 

2.2 The following table summarises risks on the corporate risk register with the 
current severity graded above the tolerance threshold: 

 

Risk 

No 
Risk 

Score - 

Prev Qtr 
Score 

CR39a Cyber-security 25 25 

CR58 Failure of social care provisions  25 25 

CR72 Children and young people will not be cared for in 

settings that best meet their needs 

16 16 

 

2.3 The corporate risk register continues to be reviewed quarterly by ELT, with any 
actions promptly addressed. 

2.4 The directorate risk registers have been reviewed at least quarterly by each 

Director and their management team, with support from the Corporate Risk 
Manager.  The Corporate Risk Manager has continued to engage quarterly with 
Executive Directorate teams to discuss corporate and other directorate/service 

risks, and risk governance. 
 

2.5 Operational COVID-19 risks are considered and managed within the services, 
either through the production of new risks or applying the ramifications to an 
existing risk and its assessment.  In addition, specific corporate COVID-19 risks 

are captured and controlled by the councils COVID-19 response team. The 
Corporate Risk Manager presents a summary of risks by themes and 

workstreams to ELT monthly for consideration.  
The table below summarises the key corporate COVID-19 risk.   

Risk 

Increasing/unmanageable workload for staff due to anticipated increase in support 
to LTP 

Community Hub staff recruited on FTC's will seek alternative/permanent 
employment 

 

2.6 Capital Programme risks are reported through their respective programme 
board.  There is ELT representation on these boards ensuring that significant 

concerns to the successful delivery of the programmes and/or associated 
projects are discussed, communicated to ELT, and reflected in the corporate 

risk register if required. The Corporate Risk Manager has continued to provide 
support to projects and programmes, and their risk registers. 

Page 120

Agenda Item 7



2.7 The Risk Management Lunch ‘n’ Learn sessions will continue to be delivered as 

a webinar beyond October 21, and the course content has been amended to 
facilitate this delivery method. This course is now available for staff in Districts 

and Boroughs at nil cost. The follow-on course (Risk Management in Practice) 
has been designed for face-to-face delivery using a combination of instruction 

via PowerPoint and syndicate/group work and will involve staff working through 
the WSCC risk management process using a generic scenario. To support staff 
in better managing their risks the Corporate Risk Manager has produced a 

variety of resources, which have been communicated to all staff and added to 
the WSCC Risk Management SharePoint site. 

2.8 The quality and currency of information contained in the corporate and 

directorate risk registers will continue to be reviewed and updated. The 
Corporate Risk Manager is continuing to challenge whether identified actions 
will sufficiently address the concerns, and within a suitable timeframe.    

2.9 Ongoing activities the Corporate Risk Manager is undertaking to ensure 
continuous improvement and alignment with best practice include: 

 Attendance at TMG (chairing when requested) and Smarter Working 
Stakeholder Group 

 Review of Sussex Resilience Forum (SRF) risks against TMG risk register 
 Attend the South East Risk Managers Group to share best practice of risk 

management in the public sector across various local authorities  
 Attend appropriate seminars held by professional bodies e.g. Alarm, CMI 
 Support projects and programmes to provide assurance and support on 

robust governance 
 Engage and support Executive Directors, Directors, service managers and 

their teams on capturing and communicating risk 
 Attendance at/facilitating various internal boards, meetings and working 

groups 

 
2.10 At this stage, there will be no additional resources required to facilitate the 

embedding/management of risk and future actions as current support within 
the organisation is sufficient.  The Corporate Risk Manager is conducting risk 
workshops and risk training sessions in existing management meetings or 

during lunchtimes where possible to mitigate resource and scheduling conflicts. 
However, the ‘Risk Management in Practice’ course will take place during 

working hours, and participants will be responsible for ensuring their 
attendance doesn’t significantly impact their role requirement. 

2.11 The committee is asked to consider the information in this report and provide 

comment as necessary. 

3 Risk implications and mitigations 

3.1 The subject of the report is the corporate risk register. It would be contrary to 
the interests of the Council not to ensure that its risk management processes 

and registers were not aligned to Risk Management Strategy. 

 

 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 7



4 Policy alignment and compliance 

4.1 Equality duty and human rights assessment. An Equality Impact Report is not 
required for this decision as it is a report dealing with internal and procedural 
matters only, although the Council’s responsibilities in relation to the public 

sector equality duty will be one element of the approach to risk management. 

Katharine Eberhart 
Director of Finance and Support Services  

 Contact Officer: Fraser Pake, Corporate Risk and Business Planning Manager, 

033 022 28246 

Appendices 
Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register 

Background papers 

None 

Page 122

Agenda Item 7



Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

1. Failing to deliver statutory duties. Review and update business continuity and 

service critical plans.

CLT ongoing Business continuity plans periodically reviewed. To date 

there is sufficient resource to deal with challenges.

2. Negative reputational impact. Regular engagement with MHCLG and  

ensure information and direction is discussed 

and implemented through the Strategic 

Coordinating Group (SCG-Gold) and Tactical 

Coordination Group (TCG-Silver).

Chief Executive ongoing Outcomes to inform Tactical Management Group 

(TMG), Strategic Management Group (SMG), and Local 

Health Resilience Partnership (LARP) for action/info.

3. Residents don’t receive support required. Develop communications when required to 

manage expectations of staff and residents 

on WSCC response position.

Head of 

Communications

ongoing Collaboration and agreement on services provision 

messages with directorates and ELT through current 

COVID-19 mechanisms (TMG and SMG).

4. Insufficient budget/budget exceeded. To continue to lobby government groups to 

influence funding decisions.

Chief Executive Ongoing Sufficient funding received to date to deal with the 

cost.

5. Increase risk to life. Services to consider impacts should 

government impose restrictions (via tier 

system) at a district level as opposed to 

county.

CLT ongoing To be captured in business continuity plans.

6. Information not shared appropriately.

1. Outcomes for residents not delivered Continue to monitor service resource impact. ELT ongoing Concerns raised through ELT

2. Residents don’t receive support needed. Provision of support to services when 

required.

SMG ongoing Support requests raised through TMG and escalated to 

SMG if required.

3. Failing to deliver statutory duties

1. Delayed decisions impede service delivery. Data on areas of non-compliance used to 

inform Directors to enforce compliance with 

standards.

Director of Law & 

Assurance

Ongoing AGS actions approved November 2020 - updated and 

sent to RAAC March 21.  21/22 AGS actions approved 

and underway. 

2. Service improvement effort impeded. Regular compliance monitoring and active 

corporate support when non-compliance 

happens to establish better practice.

Director of Law & 

Assurance

Ongoing Audit plan settled and activity in progress

3. Resources misapplied - poor VFM. Audit plan focussing reviews on key 

corporate support systems to identify areas 

in need of improvement.

Director of Law & 

Assurance

Ongoing Actions underway as per agreed audit plan

4. Complaints and claims. Guidance to CLT on governance and 

associated tgraining now scheduled

Director of Law and 

Assurance

Dec-21 Guidance to be completed November and initial 

training from 5.11.21

5. Censure by external inspection.

4 16 Treat

Dec-21

8 Jan-222

3 12 4

Current Risk 

Score

2Treat 5 Jan-2210 5 3 15

Next Risk 

Review 

Date

Risk Update

124 3

2 4 4 2

Tolerate

Risk No Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Impact
Date Risk 

Raised

Action Target 

Date
Risk Control/ActionRisk Strategy Action Owner

Initial Risk 

Score

Target Risk 

Score

The government have relaxed COVID-19 

restrictions, however there are still 

requirements for Local Authorities to support 

the management of the COVID-19 pandemic. If 

there is a resurgence in COVID-19 infections 

and local (county or district) responsibilities are 

prolonged or additional measures imposed, 

there is a risk services will fail to deliver 

existing work plans due to staff responding to 

the impact of the pandemic, or staff shortages 

due to sickness.

CR68 Chief 

Executive

Mar-20 5

12CR70 There is an increasing demand placed on the 

senior officers due to the ongoing threat of 

COVID19 and additional burdens due to 

devolved responsibilities.  This may lead to a 

continued lack of capacity to deal with 

strategic/organisational issues, leading to poor 

decision making.

Chief 

Executive

Aug-20 4 3

5 25

CR7 There are governance systems which inhibit 

effective performance and a culture of non-

compliance and also a lack of standardisation 

in some systems and processes.  Skills and 

knowledge of systems inadequate and 

excessive effort required for sound decisions 

and outcomes.

Director of 

Law & 

Assurance

Dec-19 4

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Current Risk 

Score Next Risk 

Review 

Date

Risk UpdateRisk No Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Impact
Date Risk 

Raised

Action Target 

Date
Risk Control/ActionRisk Strategy Action Owner

Initial Risk 

Score

Target Risk 

Score

1. Over-reliance on interim and agency staff. Application of policy and provisions for 

various hard to fill posts.

Head of HR Bus Ptr 

& Org Dev

Ongoing Use of R&R package to recruit children's social workers. 

Relocation support for hard to fill roles awaiting sign off 

by ELT. Use of apprenticeships to build talent pipelines 

e.g. social worker, occupational therapist, management 

programmes.

2. Lack of corporate memory. Produce Directorate Workforce Strategies to 

identify skills, capacity and capability 

requirements. 

Head of HR Bus Ptr 

& Org Dev

Dec-21 Reward & Retention package for Children's Social 

Workers produced. Development of Workforce Plan 

being carried out as part of Children First Improvement 

Plan.

3. Inadequate pace/speed of delivery. Development of comprehensive employee 

value proposition.

Head of Res Org 

Dev & Talent

Feb-22 Part of People Framework Action Plan, will be 

progressed once initial kick start projects are delivered.

4. Low staff morale and performance. Longer term strategies for addressing 

recruitment issues e.g. apprenticeships, 

growing our own.

Head of Res Org 

Dev & Talent

Ongoing 3 year plans in place for apprenticeships (currently 

being refreshed).  LGA consultancy engaged with; 

recommendations received.  Continuing programme of 

marketing and awareness raising, e.g. National 

Apprenticeships Week.

1. Insufficient government funding to deliver 

services.

Pursue additional savings options to help 

close the budget gap.

Director of Finance 

& Support Services

Ongoing Good progress has been made towards updating the 

MTFS and producing a balanced budget for 2022/23 in 

spite of significant national uncertainty about the 

future of local government funding. The Government 

will be announcing the outcome of their 

Comprehensive Spending Review on 27/10/21, the 

implications of which will be reflected in further 

updates to the MTFS during November and December.

2. Adverse effect on reserves/balanced 

budget.

Monitor the use of additional funds made 

available to improve service delivery.

Director of Finance 

& Support Services

Ongoing Improvement is monitored through the relevant service 

boards

3. Reputational impact through reduction of 

service quality

Financial impacts arising from the Covid-19 

national emergency need to be reflected and 

addressed within the PRR and MTFS as 

appropriate.

Director of Finance 

& Support Services

ongoing The PRR report now reflects the impact of Covid-19 and 

sets out how this impacts specific services and WSCC as 

a whole.  This is underpinned by a bespoke recording 

approach within SAP, which clearly accounts for the 

costs incurred and funding received from Government, 

alongside the Delta return made to MHCLG on a 

monthly basis.  The MTFS planning framework also 

reflects the potential impact of Covid-19, both from the 

potential funding and budget pressures perspectives.

4. Increased liability of service delivery, 

transferred by external partners due to 

funding restrictions i.e. supporting 

homelessness.

5. Additional unexpected service and cost 

pressures from savings decisions.

6. Financial implications for both 2022/23 

and the medium term arising from the 

national emergency circumstances 

associated with Covid-19.

Jan-22

Mar-17 5 204

CR22 The financial sustainability of council services 

is at risk due to uncertain funding from central 

government and/or failure to make the 

required decisions to ensure the budget is 

balanced. This has been compounded further 

with the COVID-19 crisis, and the recent Ofsted 

and HMIC FRS reports. 

Mar-17Director of 

Finance & 

Support 

Services

4 4 16

4Treat

Tolerate

12

3 124 3 12 4

Nov-214 2 8 3CR11 There is a risk that the Council will not be seen 

as an attractive place to work by current and 

potential employees.  This will result in 

problems recruiting and retaining staff in key 

skills areas.

Director of  

Human 

Resources & 

Org Dev

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Current Risk 

Score Next Risk 

Review 

Date

Risk UpdateRisk No Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Impact
Date Risk 

Raised

Action Target 

Date
Risk Control/ActionRisk Strategy Action Owner

Initial Risk 

Score

Target Risk 

Score

1. The Council suffers significant financial loss 

or cost.

Regular review, measurement and 

evaluation of corporate 

(technological/process) / organisational 

(behavioural) response to current and 

emerging cyber threats, where applicable to 

undertake pertinent actions to mitigate risks 

identified.

Head of IT Ongoing 

2. The Council's reputation is damaged. Improve staff awareness of personal & 

business information security practices & 

identification of cyber-security issues. 

Continued actions due to evolving threats.

Head of IT Ongoing Regular comms distributed to all staff. Continuing to 

drive employees to undertake mandatory annual 

Information Security and Data Protection education 

and certification. Adhoc actions taken (as appropriate) 

in response to level of cyber threat.

3. Resident's trust in the Council is 

undermined.

Maintain IG Toolkit (NHS) & Public Service 

Network security accreditations.

Head of IT Ongoing Ongoing works to ensure appropriate 

connectivity/accreditation for applicable public 

sector/government networks/system connectivity.

4. Partners will not share data or information 

with the Council.

Conduct tests including penetration, DR and 

social engineering. (conducted 6 monthly)

Head of IT Ongoing 2021 testing schedule defined and in delivery.

5. Punitive penalties are made on the 

Council.

Ensure that cyber-attack is identified early, 

that reporting & monitoring is effective, and 

recovery can be prompt.

Head of IT Ongoing Proactive stance implemented to ensure a watching 

brief for threats/updated guidance notes. WSCC has 

formally joined SE Warning Advice and Reporting Point 

(WARP).

Provide capacity & capability to align with 

National Cyber-Security centre 

recommendations.

Head of IT Ongoing Training needs assessment regularly undertaken, 

programme of education developed to ensure IS 

resources are appropriately skilled and corporate 

practices followed align to NCSC guidance's.

Transition to a controlled framework for 

process and practice.

Head of IT Ongoing IT service redesign to be carried out due to early return 

of ITO.

Jan-225 2551620Mar-17 5 Treat 44Director of 

Finance & 

Support 

Services

4CR39a Cyber threat is an evolving, persistent and 

increasingly complex risk to the ongoing 

operation of County Council. 

There is a risk of a successful cyber attack 

directly from external threats; or indirectly as a 

consequence of members or staff falling prey 

to social engineering or phishing attacks. 

The potential outcome may lead to significant 

service disruption and possible data loss. 

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Current Risk 

Score Next Risk 

Review 

Date

Risk UpdateRisk No Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Impact
Date Risk 

Raised

Action Target 

Date
Risk Control/ActionRisk Strategy Action Owner

Initial Risk 

Score

Target Risk 

Score

1. Individuals or groups come to harm. Test the effectiveness of DPIA Head of Data 

Protection

Ongoing Annual business process review via DPIA to confirm 

compliance or to reflect update/risk assessment if 

business process elements have shifted since last 

review.

2. The Council's reputation is damaged. Maintain IG Toolkit (NHS) & Public Service 

Network security accreditations.

Head of IT Ongoing Ongoing works to ensure appropriate 

connectivity/accreditation for applicable public 

sector/government networks/system connectivity.

3. Resident's trust in the Council is 

undermined.

Undertake Data Privacy Impact Assessments 

(DPIA) when systems or processes change 

and carry out resulting actions.

Director of Law & 

Assurance

Ongoing Processes settled. Impact assessments completed. 

Further DPIA to be conducted as required.  

4. Partners will not share data or information 

with the Council.

Enable safe data sharing, including using 

appropriate data standards & appropriate 

anonymization techniques.

Head of IT Ongoing Mandatory training implemented to ensure employees 

are aware of obligations and support available. Data 

sharing agreements / contractual terms to cover 

provision of effectively managed DP obligations 

between WSCC/Suppliers/third parties.

5. Punitive penalties are made on the 

Council.

Ensure the skills and knowledge is available 

to support Caldicott Guardian in ASC.

Head of Data 

Protection

Ongoing Head of IT and DP Team leader to liaise with DASS by 

end March 21 to settle actions

Adopt ISO27001 (Information Security 

Management) aligned process & practices.

Head of IT Ongoing Adoption of ISO27001 is being considered as part of a 

wider assurance framework being evaluated for 

implementation to support operation of the Council’s 

internal IT function post the end of the existing IT 

outsource

Review IT systems implemented prior to 25 

May 2018 to confirm compliance with 

updated regulations.

Director of Law & 

Assurance

Timetabled Full and detailed inventory of the remaining systems to 

be undertaken between Jan-Mar 2022, with a further 6 

to 12 month period to complete the end to end 

rationalisation, cloud migration or termination of legacy 

applications.

1. Increase risk of harm to employees, public 

and contractors.

Purchase, develop and introduce an 

interactive online H&S service led audit tool.

Health and Safety 

Manager

ongoing Site monitoring inspection templates and audit 

templates to be created in Firmstep.

2. Increase number of claims and premiums. Conduct a training needs analysis, produce 

gap analysis to understand requirements and 

produce suitable courses as a consequence.

Health and Safety 

Manager

ongoing Work on the TNA has been paused.  H&S e-learning 

modules bespoke to the council H&S arrangements are 

being developed with L&D development colleagues 

(completion date estimated for end-Sep 21).  Course 

content will be owned by the council instead of off the 

shelf course material.     

3. Adverse reputational impact to Council. Incorporate HS&W information into current 

performance dashboard.

Health and Safety 

Manager

ongoing Dashboard to capture details on sickness, absence and 

H&S.  H&S data currently collated relates to RIDDOR 

and NON-RIDDOR incidents.  Data from inspections and 

audits once the templates are developed in Firmstep 

will be linked to PowerBI dashboard.      

4. Increase in staff absence. Regular engagement with other LA's on best 

practice and lessons learned.

Health and Safety 

Manager

Ongoing

Develop and introduce a more 

comprehensive risk profile approach and 

front line service based audits.

Health and Safety 

Manager

Ongoing HSW risk profiling template created and being launched 

in some Directorates.  C-19 has prevented full launch 

across the council.  

Nov-21

Jan-223 9

936 3Mar-17 4 5 20 Treat 2

9

3

5 20 Tolerate 33 3

CR50

CR39b Data protection responsibilities. The Council is 

a Data Controller and has obligations and 

responsibilities arising from that role.  Council 

needs resources, skills, knowledge, systems 

and procedures to ensure obligations are met.

4

WSCC are responsible for ensuring the HS&W 

of its staff and residents. There is a risk that if 

there is a lack of H&S awareness and 

accountability by directorates to capture and 

communicate in accordance with Council 

governance arrangements, it will lead to a 

serious health & safety incident occurring. 

Director of 

Human 

Resources & 

Org Dev

Director of 

Law & 

Assurance

Mar-17

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Current Risk 

Score Next Risk 

Review 

Date

Risk UpdateRisk No Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Impact
Date Risk 

Raised

Action Target 

Date
Risk Control/ActionRisk Strategy Action Owner

Initial Risk 

Score

Target Risk 

Score

1. Potential that people will come to harm 

and Council will be unable to ensure 

statutory safeguarding duty. 

Collection of market information on Firefly.  

Analysis of information and appropriate level 

of quality assurance response.

Head of Contracts 

& Performance

ongoing Due to the implications of COVID19 and service 

resource constraints, the ability to conduct face to face 

quality assurance checks has reduced. There is now an 

increased focus on supporting/improving infection 

control and closer working with the CCG to ensure the 

right level of support to care homes is delivered.

2. CQC action against service provider which 

could lead to establishment closure at short 

notice

Provision of regular support and 

communication to care homes to monitor 

financial sustainability (increased 

engagement during COVID-19 pandemic to 

monitor Infection Control Grant).

Head of Contracts 

& Performance

ongoing Regular communication (with a COVID19 focus) with 

care homes to identify risk areas early and support 

collation of financial information for government. 

Monitoring of deaths and Covid outbreaks in care 

homes. This action is reviewed and discussed weekly at 

WSCC IMT.

3. Financial implication of cost of reprovision 

following closure of services. 

Financial analysis of high risk provision - due 

diligence checks.

Head of Contracts 

& Performance

ongoing Working with strategic contracts to identify key 

providers for more regular financial checks. 

Commissioning of sustainability blocks to deliver a level 

of financial stability.

4. Reduced capacity in the market as a result 

of failure of provision.

In the event of an incident, ensure the 

consistent implementation of Emergency 

Response Plans, including a full de-brief and 

lessons learned.

Assistant Director 

(Operations) 

ongoing Emergency plans in place for residential services and 

Domiciliary Care provision.  Continue to work with RET 

to ensure process is robust and reflects learning from 

incidences.

5. Delay for those residents who are 

Medically Ready to Discharge (MRD).

Review capacity of residential and non-

residential services to ensure service 

availability and to support identification of 

contingencies if needed.

Cx Lead ongoing Regular contact with registered residential care 

providers enquiring about vacancies, and the Shaw bed 

booking system enables information on capacity for the 

Combined Placement and Sourcing team to utilise to 

support placements.  Information on numbers of 

packages and placements being sourced is updated 

weekly and issues with capacity which are escalated to 

the weekly Capacity Oversight Group meeting.  In times 

of capacity shortages action plans are developed to 

support improvements.  

6. Non-compliance with Care Act.  Administration of central government 

funding to provide financial support to the 

sector.

Cx Lead ongoing Total payments of £43.3million in 20/21 made to the 

care sector through Department of Health and Social 

Care (DHSC) Grants, payments to Council commissioned 

provision and uplifts to Council rates.  For 21/22 an 

uplift to commissioned provision of 1.75% has been 

decided and implemented.  Further DHSC Infection 

Control and testing funds have been made available 

until end March 2022.   

7. Reputational impact.  Public perception of 

the council being willing to accept poor 

standards of care. Low public confidence in 

social care.

Regular review of care homes business 

continuity arrangements to address 

government vaccination directive.  

Head of Contracts 

& Performance

ongoing Engagement to include supply chains/contractors 

requiring access to ensure maintenance schedules are 

reviewed and adjusted if necessary. 

8. Adverse impact on Health and Social Care 

system.

Jan-229 5 255Sep-18 33Treat255CR58 5Executive 

Director of 

Adults and 

Health

The care market is experiencing an 

unprecedented period of fragility, particularly 

due to staff shortages and increasing demand. 

This has been further exacerbated by COVID19, 

including the mandatory requirement for care 

staff to have a vaccination; however this also 

extends to WSCC staff requiring access to these 

facilities (i.e. Social Workers, OT), and 

contractors. If the current and future 

commercial/economic viability of providers is 

not identified and supported, there is a risk of 

failure of social care provision which will result 

in funded and self-funded residents of West 

Sussex left without suitable care.

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Current Risk 

Score Next Risk 

Review 

Date

Risk UpdateRisk No Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Impact
Date Risk 

Raised

Action Target 

Date
Risk Control/ActionRisk Strategy Action Owner

Initial Risk 

Score

Target Risk 

Score

1. Reputational damage

2. Corporate Governance Inspection

3. Legal implications of not delivering 

statutory services

4. Increased risk harm

1. The Council would have let children down 

and as a result our reputation and credibility 

would be significantly damaged.

Implement Practice Improvement Plan (PIP). 

Improvement Plans include management 

development and HCC intervention.

Executive Director 

of  Children, Young 

People and 

Learning

Ongoing Improvement activity continues to be embedded within 

the social work teams. The management assessment 

programme is now being implemented with all Service 

Leads being assessed by the end of January. The full 

programme of assessments was completed by mid-May 

2021. Statutory performance continues to improve but 

there is still inconsistency across the service. The 

service continues to work with our improvement 

partners (HCC) to deliver ongoing improvement activity 

across children’s social care. The service remains under 

close scrutiny from the independent Improvement 

Board and the statutory regulator, Ofsted.

2. Subject to investigation and further legal 

action taken against the Council.

Provide proactive improvement support to 

services to assure effective safeguarding 

practices.

Executive Director 

of  Children, Young 

People and 

Learning

ongoing All improvement activity is overseen and supported by 

the dedicated Practice Improvement team who report 

regularly to DLT and the Improvement Board. We 

continue to revise and improve practice guidance, 

policy and practice on an ongoing basis. Areas of 

further development have been identified from the 

latest Ofsted focused visit and they form a focus for the 

next phase of the improvement work.

3. Immediate inspection and Government 

intervention.

1. Service failure Develop plan to stabilise senior leadership 

team. 

Chief Executive ongoing Stable team - some tasks ongoing to maintain and to 

address limited interim roles in place

2. External intervention Engage with external partners (including 

LGA) to scope and deliver Leadership 

development for Cabinet and Senior Officers.

Director of Law & 

Assurance

ongoing Plan completed and approved. For implementation 

with LGA post election as part of induction programme

3. Poor value for money Implementation of governance changes as 

approved by Council (17.12.19) 

Director of Law & 

Assurance

ongoing Completed those for immediate or approved 

implementation to meet Council's decision. Further 

review post election.

Ensure robust project and programme 

governance in place and monitor delivery.

Chief Fire Officer ongoing The FRS has received a further Inspectorate Causes of 

Concern revisit. This revisit is the first time that the 

HMICFRS has specifically focussed on reviewing 

progress against all the causes of concern. The 

subsequent report from the Inspectorate, which have 

been shared with the FRS Scrutiny Committee at it’s 

June meeting, highlights that the governance and 

scrutiny arrangements are now more effective than the 

last time that the service had a revisit and that 

significant progress has been made on the causes of 

concerns. It was made clear that that in the next 

inspection, which is planned for September 2021, 

further assessment of progress will be undertaken 

against these recommendations.

Nov-212 6

Apr-2215

Nov-2135

6

3

20 Tolerate 3

55

4 2

5

3

15

25 Treat

5 4 20 Treat 5 2 10

1025Jun-19

5CR65 Chief 

Executive

Dec-19

CR61 A 'serious incident' occurs resulting in the 

death or serious injury of a child where the 

Council is found to have failed in their duty to 

safeguard, prevent or protect the child from 

harm.

CR60 There is a risk of failing to deliver the HMIC FRS 

improvement plan, leading to an adverse 

affect on service delivery; which may result in 

failing any subsequent inspection.

Chief Fire 

Officer

Apr-19

The review of corporate leadership, 

governance and culture recommended in the 

Children’s Commissioner’s report is not fully 

undertaken or effectively implemented leading 

to a lack of necessary improvement and further 

service failures or external intervention. 

Executive 

Director of  

Children, 

Young People 

and Learning

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Im
p

ac
t

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Sc
o

re

Current Risk 

Score Next Risk 

Review 

Date

Risk UpdateRisk No Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Impact
Date Risk 

Raised

Action Target 

Date
Risk Control/ActionRisk Strategy Action Owner

Initial Risk 

Score

Target Risk 

Score

1. A child is exposed to dangers which could 

cause harm.

Deliver Children First Improvement Plan. Senior 

Improvement Lead

ongoing The Children First Improvement Plan has been 

developed to incorporate three key pillars to ensure an 

improved level of service: Pillar 1 - Everyone knows 

‘what good looks like’; Pillar 2: Creating the right 

environment for good social work to flourish; Pillar 3 : 

Deliver an Improved Service Model. The programme is 

being implemented and is on target as outlined in the 

Transformation Programme summary. 

2. Significant reputational damage. Continue to work with Hants CC as a partner 

in practice to improve the breadth of 

children's service.

Executive Director 

of  Children, Young 

People and 

Learning

ongoing The phase 2 workstream improvement action plan, 

which is jointly developed by WSCC and HCC is being 

progressed. Regular steering group to track and 

monitor progress and report into the into Improvement 

Board.

3. Reduced confidence by residents in the 

Councils ability to run children's services.

Implement the Children First Service 

transformation model

Children First 

Transformation 

Director

ongoing Family Safeguarding model redesign to ensure practice 

improvements are sustainable and embedded to 

provide a good level of service is being progressed and 

is meeting its milestones for implementation.

4. Legal implications through non-compliance 

or negligence.

1. Unable to meet primary needs of children 

we care for.

Develop and publish a market position 

statement to be sent out to care providers 

and other LA's to engage them in placements 

and requirements, in line with the needs of 

children.

Assistant Director – 

Corporate 

Parenting

Mar-22

2. Not fulfilling statutory duties to place 

children in appropriate care settings.

Conduct an annual review and update of the 

placement sufficiency and commissioning 

strategy, in line with the market position 

statement. 

Assistant Director – 

Corporate 

Parenting

ongoing

3. Adverse media coverage. Escalate to Assistant Directors and Exec 

Director any situation where a child or young 

person is at risk of being without a registered 

provision when they require one.

Heads of Service ongoing

4. Damage to the reputation and credibility 

of the council.

5. Children experience a lack of security, 

stability and support.

6. Critical findings by regulators i.e. impact 

on Children First Improvement Plan.

7. Legal action taken against the Council 

resulting in punitive penalties.

4 2 8 4 4 16 Dec-21CR72 The government have stipulated that from 9 

Sep 2021 children in care under 16 will not be 

allowed to be accommodated in unregulated 

placements. This has strengthened existing 

regulations that stipulate that all children and 

young people who require residential care 

must be placed within registered children's 

homes. Due to a local and nationwide shortage 

of registered provision there is a risk that these 

children and young people will not be cared 

for in settings that best meet their needs, 

which could lead to safeguarding concerns and 

enforcement action against the providers of 

unregistered homes and local authorities.

Executive 

Director of  

Children, 

Young People 

and Learning

Aug-21 4 5 20 Treat

15 Feb-2235 2 10 525 Treat5If the council fail to make the necessary 

improvements to progress from the previous 

‘inadequate’ rating, there is a risk that 

children’s services will fail to deliver an 

acceptable provision to the community.

CR69 Executive 

Director of  

Children, 

Young People 

and Learning

Mar-20 5

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Key decision: Not applicable 

Unrestricted 
 

Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee 

8 November 2021 

Arrangements for appointment of an External Auditor 

Report by Director of Finance and Support Services 

 

Summary 

The Council’s current external auditor is Ernst & Young LLP (EY) for both West Sussex 

County Council and West Sussex Pension Fund.  This appointment followed full 
Council’s approval in November 2016 to opt-in to the Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited (PSAA) arrangements for the purposes of the appointment of an 
external auditor. 

This report outlines the options open to the Council to appoint an external auditor 

following the end of the current arrangement in March 2023. 

Recommendation 

The Committee is asked to recommend to County Council the acceptance of the 
invitation from the Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) to continue to be 

an opt-in authority for the purposes of the appointment of an external auditor for both 
West Sussex County Council and West Sussex Pension Fund, for the period 1 April 
2023 to 31 March 2028, under the provision of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 and the requirements of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. 

 

Proposal 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Council’s current external auditor is Ernst & Young LLP (EY) for both West 
Sussex County Council and West Sussex Pension Fund.  This appointment 

followed full Council’s approval in November 2016 to opt-in to the Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) arrangements for the purposes of the 
appointment of an external auditor under the provision of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the requirements of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015.  The contract was for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 

March 2023. 

2. Options for the local appointment of an External Auditor 

2.1 There are three options open to the Council to appoint an external auditor 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act): 

Page 131

Agenda Item 8



o Option 1 – To make a stand-alone appointment, which would require the 

Council to set up an Auditor Panel.  The members of the panel must be 
wholly or a majority of independent members as defined by the Act.  

Independent members for this purpose are independent appointees, this 
excludes current and former elected members (or officers) and their close 

families and friends.  This means that elected members will not have a 
majority input to assessing bids and choosing which firm of accountants to 
award a contract for the Council’s external audit.  A new independent Auditor 

Panel established by the Council would be responsible for selecting the 
auditor.  Setting up a panel would allow the Council to take maximum 

advantage of the local appointment regime and have local input to the 
decision.  However, the panel would need to be established and a 
procurement exercise would need to be supported which would generate a 

cost and the Council would not be able to take advantage of reduced fees 
that may be available through joint or national procurement contracts. 

o Option 2 – Set up a joint Auditor Panel/local joint procurement 

arrangements.  The Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 
establish a joint auditor panel.  Again this will need to be constituted of 
wholly or a majority of independent appointees (members).  Further legal 

advice would be required on the exact constitution of such a panel having 
regard to the obligations of each Council under the Act.  Under this option, 

the costs of setting up the panel, running the bidding exercise and 
negotiating the contract will be shared across a number of authorities and 
there would be greater opportunity for negotiating some economies of scale 

by being able to offer a larger combined contract value to the firms.  
However, the decision making body will be further removed from local input, 

with potentially no input from elected members where a wholly independent 
auditor panel is used or possible only one elected member representing each 

Council, depending on the constitution agreed with the other bodies involved.  
In addition, the choice of auditor could be complicated where individual 
Councils have independence issues.  An independence issue occurs where the 

auditor has recently or is currently carrying out works such as consultancy or 
advisory work for the Council.  Where this occurs some auditors may be 

prevented from being appointed by the terms of their professional standards.  
There is a risk that if the joint auditor panel choose a firm that is conflicted 
for West Sussex County Council then we may still need to make a separate 

appointment with all the attendant costs and loss of economies possible 
through joint procurement. 

o Option 3 – Opt-in to a Sector Led Body (SLB) appointed by the Secretary of 

State under the Act (this is our current approach with PSAA as the SLB).  A 
SLB would have the ability to negotiate contracts with the firms nationally, 
maximising the opportunities for the most economic and efficient approach to 

procurement of external audit on behalf of the whole sector.  The costs of 
setting up the appointment arrangements and negotiating fees would be 

shared across all opt-in authorities and by offering large contract values the 
firms would be able to offer better rates and lower fees than are likely to 
result from local negotiation.  Any conflicts at individual authorities would be 

managed by the SLB who would have a number of contracted firms to call 
upon. The appointment process would not be ceded to locally appointed 

independent members.  However, individual elected members will have less 
opportunity for direct involvement in the appointment process other than 

through the LGA and/or stakeholder representative groups. 

Page 132

Agenda Item 8



3. Latest Position 

3.1 The Secretary of State has again confirmed PSAA in the role of the appointing 
person for eligible principal bodies for the period commencing April 2023 under 
regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015.  For the 

audit of the 2023/24 accounts onwards, for a five year period up to 2027/28, 
PSAA will appoint an auditor to relevant principal authorities that choose to opt 

into its national collective scheme. 

3.2 In September 2021 PSAA invited all eligible principal local government bodies 
to opt-in to the national auditor appointment arrangements.  The length of the 
compulsory appointing period is the five consecutive financial years 

commencing 1 April 2023.  Formal acceptance to this invitation is required by 
11 March 2022 and the decision to accept the invitation and to opt-in needs to 

be made by full Council.   

3.3 The Redmond Review was undertaken in 2019, to consider the arrangements in 
place to support the transparency and quality of local authority financial 

reporting and external audit.  One of the problems highlighted in the Redmond 
Review was the fragility of the local audit market. In recognition, central 
Government has recognised that the regulations to ensure that PSAA can set 

fees that better reflect the cost of undertaking the audit need to be reviewed 
and have recently consulted on this. 

3.4 In addition, central Government will provide the sector additional funding in 

2021/22 to support affected local bodies to meet the anticipated increase in 
auditor fees and to meet new burdens on councils as a result of new reporting 
requirements. Central Government will continue to monitor the financial impact 

of auditor fees on local government in future years. 

3.5 Balancing the benefits and risks outline above, it is recommended that the 
Council continues with the current arrangement (Option 3), as a means of 

appointing External Auditors from April 2023. 

  

Page 133

Agenda Item 8



4. Finance & Resource Implications 

4.1 The breakdown for audit fees for both West Sussex County Council and West 
Sussex Pension Fund for 2019/20 and 2020/21 is set out below. 

4.2 West Sussex County Council audit fees 

 
Final Fee 

2018/19 

Final Fee 

2019/20 

Final Fee 

2020/21 

Scale fee 90,561 90,561 90,561 

Scale fee variation 3,000   

Planned 2019/20 recurrent fee 

variation reflecting underlying level of 
additional risk at the Council (yet to be 

agreed by PSAA) 

 66,426 66,426 

Risk based fee variations  60,500 TBC 

Additional work (including IAS 19 
assurance work on behalf of admitted 

bodies) 

   

Total fees 93,561 217,487 TBC 

4.3 West Sussex Pension Fund audit fees 

 
Final Fee 
2018/19 

Final Fee 
2019/20 

Final Fee 
2020/21 

Scale fee 20,364 20,364 20,364 

Scale fee variation    

Planned 2019/20 recurrent fee 
variation reflecting underlying level of 

additional risk at the Council (yet to be 
agreed by PSAA) 

 33,533 33,533 

Risk based fee variations    

Additional work (including IAS 19 

assurance work on behalf of admitted 
bodies) 

5,500 21,500 9,000 

Total fees 25,864 75,397 62,897 

  

Page 134

Agenda Item 8



4.4 Over the last couple of years, the level of audit fees has increased significantly 
for both West Sussex County Council and West Sussex Pension Fund reflecting 
the regulatory and compliance audit requirements which were not present in 

the market at the time of EY’s most recent bid to PSAA. 

4.5 Option 3 is considered to provide the best value for money for the Council and 
Pension Fund to procure external auditors from 2023/24 onwards for a five year 

period. 

5. Risk implications and mitigations 

5.1 The risks associated with each of the three options are set out in the body of 
the report. 

Katharine Eberhart 

Director of Finance and Support Services 

 Contact Officer: Vicky Chuter, Financial Reporting Manager, 033 022 23414 

Background Papers 
None 

Page 135

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Key decision: Not applicable 

Unrestricted 
 

Regulation, Audit and Accounts Committee 

8 November 2021 

Treasury Management 
Compliance Report – Second Quarter 2021/22 

Report by Director of Finance and Support Services 
 

Summary 

In accordance with treasury management governance arrangements, this report 
details compliance against planned parameters as approved within the annual 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS). 

During the second quarter of 2021/22 the County Council complied with all of the 
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements related to its treasury management 

activities.  The Director of Finance and Support Services confirms that there were no 
breaches of the approved TMSS (including the Annual Investment Strategy) during 

the period. 

Recommendation 

The Committee is asked to review and comment on the Treasury Management 

Compliance Report. 
 

Proposal 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The County Council has substantial amounts of investments and borrowings and 
is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and 

the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  The Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury Management 

recommends that members are regularly updated on treasury management 
activity; this report therefore ensures the County Council is implementing best 
practice in accordance with the Code. 

2. Compliance Report 

2.1 Throughout the second quarter of 2021/22 the County Council complied with 
the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements which require officers to 

identify and where possible quantify the levels of risk associated with its 
treasury management activities.  Additionally, no counterparty that the County 

Council held investments with during the quarter was negatively impacted by 
credit rating updates as published by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s, 
credit default swap/equity price trends and general media alerts. 

Page 137

Agenda Item 9



2.2 Borrowing: On 30 September 2021 the County Council’s Public Works Loan 

Board (PWLB) long-term borrowing for capital purposes totalled £471.3m (no 
change from 30 June 2021).  During the second quarter of 2021/22: 

(a) No new external borrowing for capital purposes was undertaken during the 
period. 

(b) No external debt rescheduling was undertaken during the period. 

(c) Excluding money held on behalf of the Chichester Harbour Conservancy 
(and its associated charities) and approved overdraft facilities with the 

County Council’s main provider of banking services (Lloyds), no short-term 
borrowing was undertaken for cash flow purposes.  The County Council’s 

policy of funding daily cash flow shortages from balances held in short-
term Money Market Funds was maintained throughout the period. 

2.3 Investment: The average level of County Council funds available for treasury 

investment during 2021/22 (to 30 September) was £411.6m.  Actual levels of 
investments, including cash balances held in the County Council’s main Lloyds 

business bank accounts, amounted to £433.7m on 30 September 2021 
(£378.4m as of 30 June 2021).  Cash balances available for investment remain 
at elevated levels, a consequence of Capital, Revenue & Emergency Covid-19 

funding received ahead of spend committed throughout the remainder of 
2021/22.   

2.4 UK banking legislation places the burden of rescuing failing banks 
disproportionately onto unsecured creditors (including local authority investors) 
through the potential bail-in of unsecured bank deposits.  The use of unsecured 

bank deposits and short-term Money Market Funds however remains an integral 
part of the County Council’s investment strategy in maintaining adequate cash-

flow liquidity; ensuring that there were enough funds to meet all financial 
obligations (including those relating to Covid-19) as they arose.  During the 
second quarter of 2021/22 this included the arrangement of short term 

investments (up to one year) with both financial institutions and local 
authorities; with liquidity being maintained in Money Market Funds.  As a 

consequence, the disposition of bank unsecured/other investments on 30 
September 2021 as compared with 30 June 2021, is detailed below: 

Counterparty Type 
Jun-21 

£m 

Jun-21 

% 

Sep-21 

£m 

Sep-21 

% 

Banks Unsecured (Deposits) 74.7 19.7 104.5 24.1 

Short-Term Money Market Funds 87.5 23.1 137.7 31.7 

Total Bank Unsecured 162.2 42.8 242.2 55.8 

Bank Secured-Less than 1 year 0.0 0.0 15.1 3.5 

Bank Secured-Greater than 1 year (i) 10.0 2.6 10.0 2.3 

Non-Bank-Less than 1 year 140.0 37.0 110.0 25.4 

Non-Bank-Greater than 1 year (i) 15.0 4.0 5.0 1.2 

Internal Investments 327.2 86.4 382.3 88.2 

Externally Managed - Multi Asset  27.5 7.3 27.0 6.2 

Externally Managed – Property 23.7 6.3 24.4 5.6 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 378.4 100.0 433.7 100.0 

(i) Greater than one year at commencement of investment. 

2.5 The full breakdown of the County Council’s investment portfolio on 30 
September 2021 is shown in Appendix A.   

Page 138

Agenda Item 9



2.6 In demonstrating compliance with the County Council’s creditworthiness policy 

(as contained within the approved 2021/22 “Annual Investment Strategy”) the 
movement in the investment portfolio (actual cash position) by the credit rating 

of the financial institution, or the credit rating of the specific investment (for 
example covered bonds) if higher than the individual counterparty rating, is 

shown below: 

Institution / Investment 
Credit Rating 

Mar-21 
£’m 

Jun-21 
£’m 

Sep-21 
£’m 

AAA (i) 160.0 97.5 162.8 

AA- 15.0 15.0 39.8 

A+ 46.3 44.7 34.7 

A 15.0 15.0 30.0 

A- 10.0 10.0 0.0 

Local Authority (No Rating) 130.0 145.0 115.0 

Internally Managed 376.3 327.2 382.3 

Externally Managed (AAA) 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Externally Managed (Other) 38.3 51.2 51.4 

Total Investments 414.6 378.4 433.7 

(i) Includes short-term Money Market Funds and Covered Bonds. 
 

2.7 Furthermore, the Director of Finance and Support Services confirms that during 

the second quarter there were no breaches of the following additional exposure 
limits as approved within the 2021/22 Annual Investment Strategy, including:   

(a) Up to a maximum of £90m (£30m per individual sovereign) may be 
invested in non-UK organisations (excluding investments held in short-
term Money Market Funds and externally managed pooled funds).    

Deposits by Sovereign Sep-20 
£’m 

Australia 24.3 

Canada 24.9 

Finland 9.9 

Total Investments on 30 September 2021 59.1 

Total non-UK investments on 30 September 2021 (£59.1m) represents the 
highpoint of such invested amounts during the second quarter of 2021/22. 

(b) Up to a maximum of £100m may be invested in negotiable instruments 
(bonds, certificate of deposits etc.) held in a nominated custody account.  

Actual: £69.1m on 30 September 2021 (£84m highpoint during the 
quarter). 

(c) Up to a maximum of £175m may be invested in short-term Money Market 

Funds (excluding externally managed pooled funds).  Actual: £137.7m on 
30 September 2021 (£163.5m highpoint during the quarter). 

(d) Up to a maximum of £100m may be invested in externally managed 
pooled funds; of which £60m may be invested in such funds not holding a 
AAA credit rating.  Actual: £51.4m total investment on 30 September 

2021; all of which is invested in unrated multi-asset income and property 
funds (change in fund market valuations being the only movements during 

the quarter). 

Page 139

Agenda Item 9



(e) Up to a maximum of £100m to be made available for long-term strategic 

investment based on forecast levels of PFI/MRMC reserves (as reported in 
the County Council’s Treasury Indicators).  Actual: £66.4m on 30 

September 2021 (no new long-term investments arranged during the 
quarter; £10m repaid in September 2021 by Metropolitan Housing Trust 

on maturity of two year loan). 

3. Risk implications and mitigations 

3.1 Covered in main body of report. 

Katharine Eberhart 

Director of Finance and Support Services 

Contact Officers 

 Vicky Chuter, Financial Reporting Manager, 033 022 23414 
 Jon Clear, Treasury Management Officer, 033 022 23378 

Appendices 

Appendix A – The County Council’s investment portfolio on 30 September 2021. 

Background Papers 
None 

Page 140

Agenda Item 9



Investments held on 30 September 2021 

Investments held with counterparty’s approved within the County Council’s 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy (together 

with prevailing credit ratings and maximum monetary and duration limits) on 30 September 2021, are set out below: 

Total Investments for period = £433.7m 

Table 1: UK Banks (Unsecured) – Total £60.5m 

Counterparty Credit 

Rating 

Monetary 

Limits 

Duration 

Limits 

Start 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

No. 

of Days 

Days to 

Maturity 

Interest 

Rate 

Amount 

Goldman Sachs International Bank A+ £15m 1 Year (i) 05/08/21 04/02/21 183 127 0.19% £15.0m 

Handelsbanken Plc: 35-Day Notice Account AA- £15m 1 Year n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.05% £15.0m 

Lloyds Bank Plc: Business Accounts A+ £15m 1 Year n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.00% £0.5m 

National Westminster Bank Plc A £15m 1 Year 05/02/21 04/02/22 364 127 0.09% £10.0m 

National Westminster Bank Plc A £15m 1 Year 03/08/21 03/08/22 365 307 0.16% £5.0m 

Santander UK Plc A £15m 6 Months 05/08/21 24/11/21 111 55 0.02% £15.0m 

(i) The 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy approves investment durations up to a maximum of one year for unsecured 

deposits in UK Banks holding a A+ long-term credit rating.  However, given Goldman Sachs International Bank’s elevated 
CDS price (in comparison with other approved UK banks) the County Council currently only considers deposits up to a 
maximum six month duration; in line with recommended exposure limits received from Link Group (Link Asset Services). 

Table 2: UK Banks (Secured) – Total £10.0m 

Counterparty Credit 

Rating 

Monetary 

Limits 

Duration 

Limits 

Start 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

No. 

of Days 

Days to 

Maturity 

Interest 

Rate 

Amount 

Nationwide Building Society (Covered Bond) AAA £25m 10 Years 02/08/19 02/08/22 1,096 306 0.48% £10.0m 

 

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix A



Table 3: Non-UK Banks (Unsecured) – Total £44.0m 

Counterparty Credit 

Rating 

Monetary 

Limits 

Duration 

Limits 

Start 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

No. 

of Days 

Days to 

Maturity 

Interest 

Rate 

Amount 

Australia and New Zealand Bank (Australia) A+ £15m 1 Year 22/01/21 21/01/22 364 113 0.10% £5.0m 

Australia and New Zealand Bank (Australia) A+ £15m 1 Year 22/04/21 22/04/22 365 204 0.14% £5.0m 

Australia and New Zealand Bank (Australia) A+ £15m 1 Year 22/07/21 22/07/22 365 295 0.20% £5.0m 

National Australia Bank (Australia) A+ £15m 1 Year 05/08/21 27/06/22 326 270 0.145% £4.2m 

Nordea Bank (Finland) AA- £15m 1 Year 21/09/21 21/09/22 365 356 0.175% £9.9m 

Toronto-Dominion Bank (Canada) AA- £15m 1 Year 16/08/21 12/08/22 361 316 0.155% £10.0m 

Toronto-Dominion Bank (Canada) AA- £15m 1 Year 15/09/21 13/09/22 363 348 0.195% £4.9m 

Table 4: Non-UK Banks (Secured) – Total £15.1m 

Counterparty Credit 

Rating 

Monetary 

Limits 

Duration 

Limits 

Start 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

No. 

of Days 

Days to 

Maturity 

Interest 

Rate 

Amount 

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce AAA £25m 10 Years 07/09/21 10/01/22 125 102 0.12% £10.0m 

Westpac Banking Corp. (Australia) AAA £25m 10 Years 12/07/21 30/06/22 353 273 0.13% £5.1m 

Table 5: Short-Term Money Market Funds – Total £137.7m 

Counterparty Credit 

Rating 

Monetary 

Limits 

Duration 

Limits 

Start 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

No. 

of Days 

Days to 

Maturity 

Interest 

Rate 

Amount 

Aberdeen Standard Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA £25m Note (ii) n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.01% £25.0m 

Blackrock Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA £25m Note (ii) n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.01% £25.0m 

Deutsche Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA £25m Note (ii) n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.00% £25.0m 

Federated (UK) Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA £25m Note (ii) n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.01% £25.0m 

Goldman Sachs Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA £25m Note (ii) n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.00% £12.7m 

JP Morgan Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA £25m Note (ii) n/a n/a n/a n/a 0.00% £25.0m 

(ii) No defined maturity periods for short-term Money Market Funds; withdrawals based on cash flow liquidity requirements. 

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix A



Table 6: UK Local Authorities – Total £115.0m 

Counterparty Credit 

Rating 

Monetary 

Limits 

Duration 

Limits 

Start 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

No. 

of Days 

Days to 

Maturity 

Interest 

Rate 

Amount 

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council n/a £25m 20 Years 05/11/19 05/11/21 731 36 1.45% £5.0m 

Brent Council n/a £25m 20 Years 08/02/21 07/02/22 364 130 0.10% £10.0m 

Brent Council n/a £25m 20 Years 26/02/21 24/02/22 363 147 0.15% £5.0m 

Croydon Council n/a £25m 20 Years 03/11/20 02/11/21 364 33 0.30% £10.0m 

Haringey Council n/a £25m 20 Years 12/03/21 11/03/22 364 162 0.22% £10.0m 

Luton Borough Council n/a £25m 20 Years 25/11/20 24/11/21 364 55 0.30% £5.0m 

Plymouth City Council n/a £25m 20 Years 19/04/21 14/04/22 360 196 0.26% £10.0m 

Plymouth City Council n/a £25m 20 Years 06/05/21 06/05/22 365 218 0.12% £5.0m 

Slough Borough Council n/a £25m 20 Years 15/01/21 14/01/22 364 106 0.30% £10.0m 

Slough Borough Council n/a £25m 20 Years 28/05/21 27/05/22 364 239 0.15% £5.0m 

Southwark Council n/a £25m 20 Years 18/02/21 18/01/22 334 110 0.11% £5.0m 

Southwark Council n/a £25m 20 Years 05/03/21 05/01/22 306 97 0.12% £5.0m 

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council n/a £25m 20 Years 27/11/20 26/11/21 364 57 0.25% £10.0m 

Thurrock Council n/a £25m 20 Years 02/10/20 01/10/21 364 1 0.42% £10.0m 

Thurrock Council n/a £25m 20 Years 04/08/21 04/08/22 365 308 0.22% £10.0m 

Table 7: Pooled Funds (Externally Managed) – Total £51.4m 

Counterparty Credit 

Rating 

Monetary 

Limits 

Duration 

Limits 

Start 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

No. 

of Days 

Days to 

Maturity 

2021/22 

EIR (iii)  

Market 

Value 

Fidelity Multi-Asset Income Fund n/a £15m Note (iv) 11/12/18 n/a 1,025 n/a 4.27% £13.9m 

Ninety-One Diversified Income Fund n/a £15m Note (iv) 05/12/18 n/a 1,031 n/a 4.24% £13.1m 

CCLA (Local Authorities’ Property Fund) n/a £15m Note (v) 28/02/17 n/a 1,676 n/a 3.75% £10.1m 

Hermes Property Unit Trust (HPUT) n/a £15m Note (v) 28/08/18 n/a 1,130 n/a 3.21% £9.7m 

Lothbury Property Trust (LPT) n/a £15m Note (v) 03/09/18 n/a 1,124 n/a 2.55% £4.6m 

 
(iii) Estimated return (EIR) based on information received from the respective Fund Managers during 2021/22 (to-date). 

(iv) Minimum three year investment horizon for externally managed multi-asset income funds. 
(v) Minimum five year investment horizon for externally managed property funds. 

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee
	5a West Sussex County Council 2020/21 Final Audit Results Report
	5b Draft 2020/21 Auditor's Annual Report
	6 Internal Audit - Overdue Medium & Low Priority Management Actions (October 2021)
	Appendix A - Overdue Medium & Low Priority Actions

	7 Quarterly Review of Corporate Risk Management
	Appendix A - Corporate Risk Register

	8 Arrangements for appointment of an External Auditor
	9 Treasury Management Compliance Report - Second Quarter 2021/22
	Appendix A - Investment Portfolio


